
Children's Commissioning Committee  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Children's Commissioning Committee to 
be held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
Tom Stannard 

Chief Executive  

 
DATE: Wednesday, 12 January 2022 

 
TIME:  9.30 am 

 
VENUE: Microsoft Teams Meeting 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 

this meeting.  
 

AGENDA 

 
1   Apologies for Absence  

 

 

2   Declarations of Interest  

 

 

3   Draft Minutes of the Meeting Held on 10 November 2021  

 
(Pages 1 - 8) 

4   Matters Arising  

 

 

5   Finance Report - Elaine Vermeulen  

 

(Pages 9 - 16) 

6   Paediatric Avoidable Hospital Admissions - Implementation of 

GM Asthma Standards - Harry Golby  

 

(Pages 17 - 24) 

7   Children's and Maternity Services Commissioning Update - 

Harry Golby / Tori Quinn  

 

(Pages 25 - 36) 

8   Update on Learning City - Debbie Blackburn  

 
(Pages 37 - 84) 

9   0-25 Highlights Reports from Sub Groups - for information  

 

(Pages 85 - 92) 

10   Urgent Business - Part 1  

 

 

11   Exclusion of the Public  

 

 

12   Urgent Business - Part 2  

 

 

13   Date and Time of Next Meeting - Wednesday 9 March 2022 at 
9:30am  

 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 
Contact Officer:   

Carol Eddleston E-Mail: decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk 



 

Minutes of the Meeting of the Adults Commissioning Committee held 

via MS Teams on Wednesday 10th November 2021 

Meeting started at 09:30am 
Meeting ended at 11:07am 

Present 

Cllr Damian Bailey  Executive Support Member for Social Care & Mental Health 

Dr Nick Brown   Clinical Director of Partnerships / Neighbourhood Lead – CCG - Chair 

Cllr Jim Cammell (co-chair) Lead Member for Children’s and Young People’s Services – SCC – co-

chair 

Steve Dixon (SD)  Chief Accountable Officer - CCG 

Dr Sharmishtha Ghangrekar (SG) Neighbourhood Lead – CCG  

Karen Proctor (KP)   Director of Commissioning – CCG 

Cllr John Walsh (JW)   Executive Support Member for Education and Learning - SCC  

 

In Attendance 
Debbie Blackburn (BD)   Assistant Director Public Health Nursing and Wellbeing - SCC  

Debbie Fallon (DF)  Head of Partnerships - SCC 

Chris Hesketh (CH)   Head of Financial Management – SCC 

Phil Kemp (PK)   Head of Finance and Contracting 

Phil Varghese (PH)  Next Steps (Leaving Care Manager) – SCC 

Carol Eddleston (CE)  Democratic Services - SCC 

Apologies for Absence 

Harry Golby (HG)   Deputy Director of Commissioning - CCG  

Cllr Bill Hinds (BH)   Lead Member for Finance and Support Services - SCC  

Charlotte Ramsden (CR) Strategic Director People - SCC 

Dr Tom Regan (TR)   Clinical Lead for Transformation - CCG  

David Warhurst (DW)   Chief Finance Officer - CCG  

1. Apologies for Absence 

The above apologies were noted. 

2. Declarations of Interest 

SG declared an interest in agenda item 7 relating to Next Step – Leaving Care due to her involvement 

in one of the projects through her safeguarding role. It was agreed that she would take no part in 

the decision making but would remain in the meeting as her insight into the work of the Next Step 
service would be helpful to the committee. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



3. Draft Minutes of the Meeting Held on 8 th September 2021 

The minutes of the meeting held on 8th September 2021 were approved as a correct record. 

4. Matters Arising 

There were no matters arising. 

5. Finance Report 

PK presented an update relating to the year to date financial performance and forecast and 
associated risks to the financial plan of the Children’s Integrated Fund for 2021/22. 

 At September 2021, the children’s element of the Integrated Fund (IF) was forecast to be over 

spent by £4.2m. This was £1.3m worse than the opening planned deficit of £2.9m but an 

improvement of £0.6m on the last reported position, driven by a reduction in Looked After 

Children outside placements in September. This was still a challenging area and had been 

significantly impacted by COVID-19. 

 Half Year 2 (H2) allocations were now going through governance and negotiations but, based on 

current assumptions and available funding, it was anticipated that commitments made at the 

start of the year could be achieved, meaning that the planned deficit of £2.9m still stood. 

 Key risks included the recurrent underlying financial pressures on the whole of the integrated 
fund and increased winter / unknown COVID-19 pressures. 

Questions and observations from members were discussed as follows: 

 Had all COVID-19 funding options been fully explored and had separate funding streams for 

income been applied to the pool? – This had not yet been factored in but access to any 

additional monies available to the Council through general grants would lead to a further 

improvement in the financial position. At the moment general grants were supporting the 

Council’s financial position but were usable across the Integrated Fund. An explicit decision on 

whether or not to move some of this general income into the Integrated Fund to reimburse 

some of the overspend in the Children’s element that was directly related to COVID-19 costs. 

 Had the forecast been adjusted for some of the impact of BOND and Route 29 and had all the 

impacts of BOND on the financial position been explored – CCG and SCC Finance colleagues 

reviewed the position regularly and currently viewed it as a prudent position which could 

improve or worsen, subject to the winter pressures and COVID-19 risks outlined above. There 

was a review underway of residential placements and whether any could be brought back into 

Salford’s residential estate which would help to drive down costs. 

 Out of area placements were much more expensive but would the cost change when the GM ICS 

came online? – the market was oversubscribed and Salford was in competing demand with lots 

of areas, not just the North West. A big piece of work was underway across GM around 

sufficiency to look at what was required, opportunities for collaborative commissioning and 

what could be done to work with and manage the market to drive down the cost. Demand and 

types of placement requirements were so diverse that there was still a reliance on private 

providers to provide some of the capacity.  

 More generally there were a number of differences across GM localities including in policies, pay 

rates and fee rates which had yet to be worked through ahead of the ICS and the Integrated 

Care Board, including whether to go for best practice, level up or average out. This may have 

some financial consequences for some parts of the system and may ultimately lead to some 

economies of scale.  

Page 2



 Planning for 2022/23 was even more challenging for a number of reasons including structural & 

organisational changes, as yet unknown funding envelopes, as yet unknown guidance and 

underlying deficits in the integrated fund. Focus would be on the strategy, rather than the detail, 

and hopefully a forward look for 2022/23 would be available by the next meeting – CCG and SCC 

colleagues were meeting in the first week of December to look at what a very early iteration of a 

financial plan might look like, based on some very broad assumptions. 

The Children’s Commissioning Committee noted the financial position for 2021/22, the savings 

programme for 2021/22 to deliver a balanced plan and the risks outlined in section 5 of the report. 

The committee noted that a decision would be required on whether some of the general grant 

funding available to the Council would be transferred to the Integrated Fund to offset some of the 
overspend directly resulting from COVID-19. 

6. Perinatal and Parent Infant Mental Health (PIMH) update 

DB provided an update and assurance on the progress of Salford’s Perinatal Infant Mental Health 

|(PIMH) programme development and implementation, an update on the wider GM developments 
and progress around PIMH and information on the key next steps in this work programme.   

The programme allowed support to be provided for the first 1001 days and included third sector 

peer delivery, Dads and linked into the Adult perinatal IAPT service. GM was very impressed by 

Salford’s approach. A recent stakeholder workshop with representation across the whole system had 

set up an operational group to include the expertise of operational leads and a parent/carers group 

was currently being established. It was anticipated that the joint working approach would have a 

significant impact on the support that professionals and families received. Given the scale of the 

programme consideration was being given to the need for temporary dedicated project/programme 

management support. There was excellent work going on across the partnership and things were 
progressing well. 

Questions and observations from members were discussed as follows: 

 How would the changes to the 0-19 team impact on this? Continuity was really important when 

supporting somebody with perinatal mental health problem and had this been considered as 

part of the planning for the changes? – The 0-19 service was very heavily involved in this and 

part of the 1001 days strategy. The 0-19 service had recently reconfigured across the city and 

since October had four neighbourhood teams and a Universal Plus service which would work on 

the safeguarding elements of the work. It was anticipated that this would enhance the universal 

provision as staff would have more capacity for early identification & prevention and support for 

families. As the commissioner of the 0-19 service DB would welcome any feedback, particularly if 

there were any concerns about continuity of care. 

 If a family were handed over to UPP was it a handover or were they getting support from UPP? 

Bonds were very important and it was important to work on a relationship, rather than 

transactional, basis. - DB would take this back and ensure that it was clear that it should be 

alongside universal provision. Relational practice was important and they had to have a 

connection with the person that was supporting them. The 0-19 Service would be the initial 

response as it could provide listening visits and early support but each role and responsibility for 

the system needed to be clear so there was a clear pathway for referrals where required.  

 What were the ports of entry? Presumably mid-wives and health visitors would be key people in 

making referrals? How would a GP refer somebody in? – A single point of access CAMHS person 

was planned to be recruited in the Bridge and consideration was being given to Adult Mental 

Page 3



Health provision in the Bridge to help signpost where appropriate.  Both of these would bolster 

the advice giving services around the Bridge. 

 Many people experienced problems not just because they were parents but also because being 

a parent suddenly put additional strains on them such as finance and housing and they could be 

referred to the Social Prescribing Service which did not seem to be mentioned in the report. 

Were the Living Well and Wellbeing Matters part of this?  - There was not a defined offer for 

Social Prescribing as part of the PIMH programme but lots of people knew lots of information 

and would refer on to different services.  Organisations such as Homestart which offered peer 

support and mentoring had lots of networks, and the Dads Matters worker would know which 

groups parents could go to so, although not formally described as Social Prescribing, they were 

fulfilling that function and diverting people into relevant activities or groups. Because the 

programme was still evolving DB would work colleagues to ensure that it linked in with the Living 

Well and Wellbeing Models and that there was a clear communications plan in place. 

 Was there a plan in place to upskill midwives, health visitors and GPs and provide a regular 

ongoing training offer? – The CAPs service had done that really well in Manchester and the 

proposal for the Programme Manager was to support the development of a training package . 

 How would we know that the service was doing what we wanted it to do? – Governance and 

oversight of the service would link into the 1001 Day Steering Group with representation form a 

wide range of stakeholders. The processes and outcome measures for the service would be 

based on the GM specification and outcome measures to enable comparison of data across GM.   

 Utilisations of estates in the community and near homes was an ongoing challenge so were 

there plans to link in with estates coming forward including in Little Hulton and Broughton? – 

Becky Bibby was fully involved in the Neighbourhood Integrated Working programme and was 

aware of where new buildings were coming forward. It was hoped to link in with the Family 

Hubs across the city and consider other available options such as Ingleside. 

 Could some of the training sessions be recorded so that they could be watched at a time that 

was convenient for those who could not attend in person and also reduce the time that the 

training deliverers would have to go out and about training? – All different methods of delivery 
would be considered, including podcasts. 

The Children’s Commissioning Committee noted the report and supported the progress made to 
date on this programme. 

7. Investment for Next Step (Leaving Care) Service 

PV presented a business case which outlined a proposal for investment for the Salford Leaving Care 

service which was a statutory service which provided support for Salford’s Looked After Children. 

The Next Steps Leaving Care team provided a supportive relationship to young people and additional 

resource was being requested to enable effective management of increasing caseloads and to 

maintain the quality and reputation of the Leaving Care team in Salford, which was recognised as 

excellent across GM. In recent years the number of young people supported by the team had 
increased from 284 in November 2017 to 348 this year. 

The proposals were to recruit for three years one FTE Review Officer, two FTE Pathway Advisors and 

one FTE Admin Support. The two additional Pathway Advisors would provide capacity for 30 

additional young people and it was already known that between now and June 2023 there would be 

84 young people coming through. There were almost 500 care leaver reviews which would need to 

take place per year to identify areas of development and opportunities towards purposeful lifestyle 

and activities, not including any significant event which also qualified a care leaver for a review. 
Without this investment the service would not be able to meet OFSTED expectations.  

Page 4



Questions and observations from members were discussed as follows: 

 The argument put forward for the additional investment was very cogent given members’ 

statutory and moral responsibilities for young people in the city.  

 Many would go on to become parents themselves without having had the benefit of having seen 

parenting first hand. Investing now would hopefully enable them to have purposeful live s and 

not see their own children taken into care, thereby generating savings in future. 

 The feedback received recently from OFSTED had been excellent. 

 Salford was on the top 10 nationally for the number of Next Step young people who we re not 

NEET. 

 It was difficult to argue against the investment given the improvements it would make, however, 

it was important to be explicit that the committee was choosing to make this decision in the 

context of a £4.2m overspend. 

 When business cases were presented in isolation it was very difficult to disagree with them even 

though the committee had previously agreed its strategic priorities for the next three years.  The 

plan was refreshed at various points throughout the year and it was important that this was 

reviewed closely so that any required changes could be highlighted.  

 The financial plan had included a line for Looked After Children but did not include a specific ask 

with a financial value for this programme 

 What were the consequences of overspending on top of a previously agreed overspend? Did 

that identify that there was a need that had been identified or did it come across as a financial 

oversight? – This committee would be held to account by Health and Care Commissioning Board 

which in turn was held to account by the CCG’s Governing Body and the Council’s Cabinet.  The 

committee therefore had to be comfortable that it could justify making decisions which put 

costs in the system. 

 The additional investment was proposed to be funded by a refund of approx £550k from another 

local authority following a Judicial Review relating to the placement in a secure unit of a young 

person for whom another authority should have taken responsibility .  

 It was acknowledged that the refund could be used for other children’s related spend in areas 

for which members had corporate responsibility or to reduce the planned deficit but it would 

buy capacity in the Next Steps service for at least two years. 

 It was a challenge to the committee to ensure its strategic planning and priority setting were 

correct. Anything that was brought before the committee for approval that was not on the 

strategic plan, other than as a result of pressures that could not reasonably have been foreseen, 

had to be thoroughly justified and robustly challenged, including considering whether funding on 

another programme could be stopped or the committee was comfortable in taking on the 

additional financial risk. 

 PV had highlighted this 12 months ago and usually this would have been an in-service 

redevelopment or reconfiguration of provision to meet the needs but all services were 

stretched. DB and Assistant Director colleagues would look closely at services to identify future 

pressures so that they could be really clear on next year’s plan about the priorities , including 

additional pressures caused by COVID-19 and additional demand. 

 Acknowledging that the refund could have been used to reduce the planned deficit, the 

committee agreed that additional investment in the Next Step service was the right thing to do 

and accepted that the refund would allow investment to be made without creating additional 
pressure on the budget. 

The Children’s Commissioning Committee agreed to support the short term investment of 

£549,668 into the Next Step service to reduce pressure and demand on the service by funding the 

Page 5



following posts for a three year period: One FTE Review Officer, two FTE Pathway Advisors and 

one FTE Admin Support. 

8. Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACE) and Trauma Responsive System Assurance 

Report 

DB presented an update on the current work in the Trauma and Resilience Workstream which was 

part of the wider Better Outcomes New Delivery (BOND) investment. The work tied in very closely 

with work across GM which DB was leading. The report also sought approval to fund various 
initiatives from previously allocated BOND funding. 

More than 1000 members of staff had been trained on trauma response approaches with the aim of 

making Salford an all-age ACE and Trauma responsive city and link across Health, Social Care, Police, 

Probation and Education. This would be facilitated by the recruitment of two Trauma Responsive 

Practitioners. Plans were also underway to develop a system to award funding to third sector and 

community groups with known expertise in the field to develop projects and activities such as 

champion roles, awareness raising and communities of practice in 3rd sector and social enterprise 
organisations.  

An evaluation partner (academic) was being commissioned at GM level to evaluate what difference 
the work was making. 

Monitoring would be via the BOND programme and updates would be reported to this committee.  

Feedback to date had been really positive and a workshop scheduled for December would help to 
identify the need and shape the plan going forward. 

Questions and observations from members were discussed as follows: 

- Hopefully in a relatively short time this approach would become standard practice in the same 

way that safeguarding now was. 

- Evaluation by independent, academic partners was welcomed as it was important to show that  

public money was being used efficiently and effectively and having a positive impact  and also 

would allow front line staff to focus on what they were trying to deliver rather than spend time 

on evaluation themselves. 
- Results and learning should be shared and communicated publicly. 

The Children’s Commissioning Committee noted the work and next steps in the Salford ACE and 

Trauma Responsive workstream and endorsed the investment outlined in the report which had 

already been agreed as part of Better Outcomes New Delivery Model Funding. 

9. BOND Programme Update 

DF presented an update on progress of the various strands of the BOND programme since the Health 

and Care Commissioning Board had agreed continued funding: 

 No wrong Door known locally as Route 29  

 Transforming Care in Salford [TCS]  

 Achieving Change Together [ACT]  

 Domestic Abuse 

Each of the key programmes had recently conducted an evaluation of the year so far. All of the 

programmes had come online at different times so were at different stages of development and 

were all working with different numbers of individuals but were all starting to show outcomes for 

Page 6



Young People and their families. The longer term impact of some of the projects, such as Domestic 

Abuse, may take years to demonstrate success in cases where a young person’s later course of life in 
adulthood may be completely different to what it might otherwise have been.  

Route 29 was the biggest project, working with significant numbers of young people and well above 

the numbers that had been anticipated originally. As this was believed to be as a result of COVID-19 

there was no request for additional staff at this time. Route 29 and TCS worked particularly closely 

together. 

TCS and ACT were working with very small numbers to provide intensive support to families and 
young people. 

The pandemic had had a major impact on family stress levels resulting in more young people coming 

into the system and on two in-house children’s homes being paused, affecting commissioners’ ability 

to demonstrate that the number of looked after young people, particularly  in outside placements, 

was coming down. The numbers concerned had risen from 21 to 42 between February 2021 and this 
report being produced, and in recent days the figure had increased to 44. 

Route 29 could clearly demonstrate the impact it was having and cost avoidance and there was now 

certainly some progress with TCS when supporting a young person out of the hospital and into the 
community. 

Questions and observations from members were discussed as follows: 

- The value, impact and interrelationships of the various programmes on today’s agenda were 

becoming clearer and would hopefully ease pressures on different areas in coming years . 

- It would be helpful to have more factual estimates of savings and cost avoidance each year as a 

result of these programmes and forecasts going forwards. 

- It would be helpful to have some outcome measures in place to demonstrate a plateauing out of 

numbers going into care as compared with historical data. 

- Route 29 figures were showing that there was a plateau of young people coming into care 

because it was an edge of care service. 

- It was hoped that the Route 29 numbers would continue to plateau and go down as we emerged 

from the pandemic because people felt well supported rather than because some of the young 

people were unseen and their needs missed. 

- There had been ongoing tracking of vulnerable children and school attendance so it was hoped 

that there would not be a big surge but the pandemic would present more mental health needs 

among parents so there may be fluctuations. 

- The Risky Behaviour and Key Worker earlier intervention work would hopefully help to pick up 

younger people from primary to secondary schools. 

- It might be helpful to use academics to look at what methodology might be used to extrapolate 

the benefits and which parts of the system generated the biggest benefits.  

- There must be opportunities to link in with the university, including the Business School and 
Health and Social Care Faculty, to evaluate the whole system approach.  

The Children’s Commissioning Committee noted the report and looked forward to receiving more 
detail on estimated and forecast savings and cost avoidance as the programmes progressed. 

10. 0-25 Highlights Reports from Sub Groups  

The following highlights reports were provided for information: 

Page 7



 CAN ERG - real momentum now behind the neuro-developmental pathway work, with a 

business case for additional investments under development (in the financial plan)  

 Early Help Neighbourhood Operational Group (EHNOG) – integrating working in localities in 

children’s and adults’. 

 Therapies ERG (SLCN & OT/PT) – a business case was coming forward for OT/PT.  

 Voice of the Child – physical meetings were taking place now which was helpful. Family Voice 

group had recently launched. 

 Salford Thrive – the service had been badly hit by sickness but was now looking at its Business as 
Usual plan and reinstate/employ more staff. 

11. Urgent Business 

NB observed that quite a large number of pupils from years 8, 9 and 10 were struggling at the 

moment and schools did not seem to know what was available to them to assist. Schools were 

currently under significant pressure trying to catch up and get back to normal and i t would be 
helpful to remind them about what support was available especially in relation to mental health.  

It was timely to remind schools about The Emotional Health and Wellbeing Directory which was 

really accessible and easy to read and had just been updated to include adolescent support – 
signposting and online resource. 

It was agreed that schools would be reminded regularly about the directory in weekly comms.  

The Children’s Commissioning Committee agreed that information about the Thrive Directory 
should be included in weekly comms updates to schools on a regular basis over coming months. 

12. Date and Time of Next Meeting 

Wednesday 12th January 2022 at 09:30am. 

 

Page 8



 

   
 

 

    
    
    
     

Children’s Commissioning Committee  

12th January 2022 
Item 5 Finance Report  
 
Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information (Please delete as appropriate) 
 

Report of: Chief Finance Officer 

Date of Paper: 22nd December 2021 

In case of query, please contact: Elaine Vermeulen, Interim Chief Finance Officer 

Strategic Priorities:  
(Please tick as appropriate) 

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research  

Adult Services 

Children’s and Maternity Services  

All Age Mental Health  
Primary Care  

Enabling Transformation  
Mayoral Priorities: 
(Please tick as appropriate) 

Tackling poverty and inequality  
Reducing Health Inequalities  

Skills and Education (A Learning City)  
Affordable Housing  

Transport and Digital Connectivity  
Tackling the Climate Change Emergency  

Vibrant Place and Spaces  
Creating an Economy for All  

Purpose of Paper:                                    

 
This paper provides the Children’s Commissioning Committee with an update relating to the 
YTD financial performance and forecast and associated risks to the financial plan of the 
Children’s Integrated Fund for 2021/22. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5

https://www.salford.gov.uk/cmpriorities


 

   
 

 

    
    
    
     

Further information 

How will this benefit the health and wellbeing of 
Salford residents, or the CCG or City Council? 

Ensuring public funding is spent 
appropriately.  Achieving Value for Money, 
ensuring that funding is available to protect 
core services. 

How does this paper address health inequalities 
and promote inclusion? 

Financial and performance pressures 
associated with the children’s integrated fund 
services. Through management of committed 
developments and holding providers to 
account for performance. 

What risks may arise as a result of this paper 
and how will they be mitigated? 

 

Does this address any existing high risks facing 
the organisation and how does it reduce them? 

 

Are there any possible conflicts of interest 
associated with this paper? 

N/A 

Will any current services or roles be affected by 
issues within this paper and what are they? 

N/A 

Note: Where appropriate, please ensure detail is provided. 

 
Document Development 

Has there been Public Engagement? N/A 

Has there been Clinical Engagement? N/A 

Has the impact on Salford socially, economically 
and environmentally been considered? 

N/A 

Has there been an analysis of any impacts on 
equality? N/A 

Has legal advice been obtained? N/A 

Has this been to any groups or committees for 
engagement, comments, or approval?  

Elements have been reviewed by the Service and 
Finance Group 

Note: Where relevant, please provide detail and ensure that it is clear how and when particular stakeholders were 
involved in this work, that there is clarity of what the key message/decision was, and whether amendments were 
requested about any part of the work.

Page 10



 

  
  

  
  
  
  

  
   

Finance Report 

 

1.  Executive Summary 
   

 
This finance report provides the Children’s Commissioning Committee (CCC) with an in-
year update in relation to the financial performance of the children’s element of the 
Integrated Fund at November 2021. 
 
At November 2021, the children’s element of the Integrated Fund (IF) is forecast to be over 
spent by £4.4m. This reflects a worsening of £0.2m from the last reported position. 
 
However, at £4.4m, the fund has worsened by £1.5m more than the opening planned deficit 
of £2.9m. 
 
Section 2 - Highlights the main areas of over and under performance within the Fund 

against the approved IF plan for 2021/22.  
 
Section 3 – Provides an update on the investment decisions that form part of the Children’s 

plan for 2021/22. 
 
CCC is asked to note the financial position along with the requirement to deliver on the 
savings programme for the Children’s Integrated Fund in 2021/22. 
 

 

2. 2021/22 Monitoring 
 
2.1  This latest finance report provides the Children’s Commissioning Committee (CCC) 

with the in-year position of the Children’s element of the Integrated Fund for the 
financial year (2021/22).  The appendices contain a lot of detail and are appended to 
give members a more thorough understanding of the scope of the Children’s Integrated 
Fund.  There are explanatory notes included in the appendices which hopefully explain 
the key messages contained within them. 

 
2.2 This finance report is based on November 2021 CCG and local authority information 

available at the time of writing the report.  A detailed analysis of the key children’s 
services within the Children’s Integrated Fund is shown in Appendices One and Two. 
The Service and Finance Group (SFG) has scrutinised the position and agreed to the 
key messages. 

 
2.3 The children’s services are forecasting to be overspent by £4.4m, this represents a 

worsening of £0.2m from the last reported position, as shown in Table 1 below. 
 
  

Page 11



 

  
  

  
  
  
  

  
   

Table 1: 2021/22 Financial Summary 

 
2.3.1 Looked After Children (LAC) - This is the main area of overspend and remains the 

biggest risk for the fund.  There has been a slight increase since the last reported 
position of £0.1m, this is driven by a slight increase in outside placements in October. 
Work remains on-going, but this is a challenging area that has, like most services been 
significantly impacted by COVID.  

 
2.3.3 Complex Needs SEN – There has been a further increase in costs since the last 

reported position of £0.2m, this is mainly driven by SEN transport costs in October 
which continue to rise over the last couple of months. 

 
2.3.4 BOND – The BOND programme has seen an increased underspend of £0.1m within 

transforming care and trauma informed project areas. 
 
2.4 There is reasonable assurance that the opening deficit position of £2.9m as well as the 

current projected overspend is affordable including enacting the risk share between 
commissioners, as funding levels have now been confirmed for H2 for Salford CCG. 

 

Page 12



 

  
  

  
  
  
  

  
   

2.5 Based on the current assumptions and the available funding, the requirement to 
achieve financial balance within Children’s remains a savings target in year of £2.9m 
recurrently to be achieved.  

 
 

3. Strategy and Investment 
 
3.1 An amount of £1.5m was set to be invested in 2021/22 within Children’s services on 

new or enhanced services across several areas. The remainder of this funding is 
shown in table 2 below. 

 
Table 2: Children’s Investment Fund Summary 2021/22 

 
3.2 There are still several smaller initiatives that are expected to slip against the planned 

investments. This slippage has been utilised to offset the overall pressure of the 
children’s fund in 2021/22. 

 
3.3 The Perinatal business case was previously expected to fully under spend in year 

however there is an element that will materialise this year and as a result has reduced 
the slippage to offset the pressure in the fund. 

 
 

4. Risks 

 
4.1 Recurrent underlying financial pressure on the fund and the impact that could have on 

the locality’s ability to deliver its strategic objectives. 
 
4.2 Increased financial pressures because of winter or a significant rise in the cases of 

COVID. 
 
4.3 The risk of the transition of statutory responsibility from CCGs to the Integrated Care 

System and any consequential revision of allocation methodologies. 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



 

  
  

  
  
  
  

  
   

5. Recommendations 

 
5.1 The Children’s Commissioning Committee (CCC) is asked to: 
 

 Note the financial position for 2021/22 
 Note the risks outlined in section 4 above. 

 
 
Elaine Vermeulen 
Interim Chief Financial Officer, Salford CCG  

Page 14



 

  
  

  
  
  
  

  
   

Appendix 1: Looked After Children (LAC) 
 

 
 
  

Page 15



 

  
  

  
  
  
  

  
   

Appendix 2: Localities 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



  
 

                                                           
 
   
 

 

 
Children’s Commissioning Committee  

PART 1  
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 6 

 
 

Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information (Please underline and bold)   
 
12th January2022 
 

Report of: 
 

 

Date of Paper: 
 

16 December 2021 

Subject: 
 

Paediatric Avoidable Admissions 

In case of query  
Please contact: 
 

Wendy.hodgson2@nhs.net 

Strategic Priorities:  Please tick w hich strategic priorities the paper relates to: 

 
 

 Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research 

 Integrated Community Care Services (Adult Services) 

 Children’s and Maternity Services 

 Primary Care 

 Enabling Transformation 

Purpose of Paper:                                    
 

  
To provide an update regarding the paediatric avoidable admissions work with a focus on 
the Asthma Care Bundle which is the key piece of work for Salford currently.  
 
The paediatric avoidable admissions work within Salford during recent years has included 
the implementation of the Gastro Pathway, Asthma and Epilepsy admissions.  The focus of 
the work currently is the implementation of the National Asthma Care bundle.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
  

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



  
 

                                                           
 
   
 

Further explanatory information required 

 
 
HOW WILL THIS BENEFIT THE 
HEALTH AND WELL BEING OF 
SALFORD RESIDENTS OR THE 
CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP? 

 

The work will improve outcomes for Children 
and young people with Asthma which results in 
hospital admissions and interrupts education 

 
WHAT RISKS MAY ARISE AS A 
RESULT OF THIS PAPER?  HOW 
CAN THEY BE MITIGATED? 
  

 

 
WHAT EQUALITY-RELATED RISKS 
MAY ARISE AS A RESULT OF THIS 
PAPER?  HOW WILL THESE BE 
MITIGATED? 
 

 

 
DOES THIS PAPER HELP ADDRESS 
ANY EXISTING HIGH RISKS FACING 
THE ORGANISATION?  IF SO WHAT 
ARE THEY AND HOW DOES THIS 
PAPER REDUCE THEM? 

 

This will help reduce avoidable hospital 
admissions and emergency attendances to 
primary and secondary care 

 
PLEASE DESCRIBE ANY POSSIBLE 
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PAPER. 
 

No 

 
PLEASE IDENTIFY ANY CURRENT 
SERVICES OR ROLES THAT MAY BE 
AFFECTED BY ISSUES WITHIN THIS 
PAPER: 
 

 

Footnote: 
 
Members of Children’s Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly.  Once papers are distributed no 
amendments are possible. 
 

Page 18



 

   
 

 

          
       

Document Development 
 

Process Yes No 
Not 

Applicable 

Comments and Date 
(i.e. presentation, verbal, actual report) 

Outcome 

Public Engagement 

(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 

consultation) 

   
  

Clinical Engagement 

(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation) 

   
  

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Social Value and 

the impacts on Salford socially, economically and 
environmentally? 

     

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality Analysis 
(EA) of any adverse impacts? 

(Please detail outcomes, including risks and how 
these will be managed)  

 
  

  

Legal Advice Sought 

 
   

  

Presented to any informal groups or committees 

(including partnership groups) for engagement or 
other formal governance groups for comments / 
approval?  

(Please specify in comments) 

   

  

Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work and ensure there is clarity 
in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether amendments were requested about a particular part of the 
work.

P
age 19



 

   
   
   

   
   
  

   
 

1.  Executive Summary 
   
 
To provide an update regarding the paediatric avoidable admissions work with a focus on 
the Asthma Care Bundle which is the key piece of work for Salford currently. The NHS 
England Asthma care bundle published in October 2021 is for use alongside the NICE 
guidance NG80 - Asthma: diagnosis, monitoring and chronic asthma management which is 
combined Adult and children’s guidance. 
 
The paediatric avoidable admissions work within Salford during recent years has included 
the implementation of the Gastro Pathway, Asthma and Epilepsy admissions.  The focus of 
the work currently is the implementation of the National Asthma Care bundle. 
 

 
 

2.  Background 

 
 

2.1    The UK has the highest prevalence, highest emergency admissions and highest death 
rates for children and young people with asthma in Europe with 1 in 11 having the 
condition. Children with poorly controlled asthma are up to six times more likely to be 
hospitalised with COVID-19 than those without the condition, a study conducted in 
Scotland has suggested. 

 
2.2    Referrals with a diagnosis of respiratory conditions were the highest diagnosis representing 

36% of referrals the Children’s Community Nursing Team received in quarter 2 of 21/22. 
 
 
2.3    Figure 1: CCNT referrals in quarter 2 by diagnosis 

 

Page 20



 

   
   
   

   
   
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
3.         GM Asthma Working Group 

 
3.1 The Greater Manchester (GM) Asthma working group has been looking at the National 

Bundle of care for children with Asthma.  This focusses on 5 components: 
 

 The environment  

 Early and accurate diagnosis  

 Effective preventative medicine  

 Management of exacerbations 

 Severe asthma 
 
3.2    Components of the Asthma Pathway:  
 

 
 
4.         Asthma Standards 

 
4.1 A number of standards have been agreed across GM as part of this work to use alongside 

the Asthma bundle of care: 

Page 21



 

   
   
   

   
   
  

 

 Any process for Asthma Care must be tailored to the individual; hearing the child; 
communicating in an age & culturally appropriate manner; making due reference to 
Safeguarding & Health Inequity 

 

 Every GP practice or Primary Care Asthma Service must have a named clinical lead, 
responsible and accountable for asthma management for children & young people 

 

 Every child should receive a diagnosis & management in accordance with NICE 
guidance 

 

 Children & young people with asthma should receive a structured review at least 
twice a year, either at Practice or Neighbourhood level, which: 

 
i. allows adequate time for the assessment & management of their asthma 
ii. records exposure to tobacco smoke and/or smoking status with smoking 

cessation offered 
iii. has a system in place to ensure that missed appointments are promptly 

followed up & actioned 
iv. allows timely review of response to alterations in treatment regimens 
v. provides/promotes delivery of annual flu schedule 
vi. considers concordance as a possible factor in poor symptom control 
vii. assesses for concurrent illnesses that increase risk of exacerbation e.g. 

allergies, Gastro oesophageal Reflux disorders (GORD) 
 

 Children with asthma are given specific training & assessment in inhaler technique 
before starting any new inhaler treatment & at each review 

 
 Treatment success should be determined in collaboration with children and their 

families. Children & families should be supported, empowered & enabled to self-
manage asthma & seek appropriate medical support. This should include a 
written/electronic action plan and advice about how to manage an acute 
exacerbation 

 

 Children who receive treatment in hospital or through out-of-hours services for an 
acute exacerbation of asthma should be booked for review with their GP practice 
team within 2 working days of discharge 

 

 Two or more A&E attendances or an admission should trigger review of the need for 
Secondary Care involvement in the child’s asthma management 

 

 Children with Difficult Asthma(this still needs formal agreement of definition) should 
be offered an assessment by a multi-disciplinary ‘Difficult Asthma Service’ 

 

 All young people with asthma should have developmentally appropriate 
arrangements, up to 25 years of age, in place to support their transition into adult 
respiratory services or management by GP practices 

 
 

Page 22



 

   
   
   

   
   
  

 

5.       Local Work 
 
5.1 A local Task and finish group has been developed with representatives from 
 

 Primary Care 

 Secondary Care 

 Emergency Care 

 Children’s Community Nursing Team 

 Public Health 

 Education 

 CCG 
 Housing 

 
5.2    The working group will be focussing on the themes of  
 

 The environment - impacts of carers smoking, housing, air pollution  

 Early and accurate diagnosis – primary, secondary, tertiary care 

 Effective Preventative medicine and management of exacerbations- Self 
management, primary care, 111, secondary care, schools (repeated absences 
due to asthma) 

 
5.3    A proposal has been developed for this to be included as a Key Performance Indicator 

within the Salford Standard 
 
 

 

6.       Recommendations 
 
6.1 The Group is asked to note the contents of this report. 
 
 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



 

   
 

 

    
    
    
     

Childrens Commissioning Committee 

12th January 2022 
AGENDA ITEM NO 7 PAPER NAME: CCG Children’s and Maternity Services 

Commissioning Update 
 
Item for: Information  
 

Report of: 
Tori Quinn – Head of Service Improvement 

 
Date of Paper: 12th January 2022 

In case of query, please contact: Tori Quinn – tori.quinn@nhs.net 

Strategic Priorities:  
(Please tick as appropriate) 

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research  
Adult Services  

Children’s and Maternity Services X 
All Age Mental Health  

Primary Care  
Enabling Transformation  

Mayoral Priorities: 
(Please tick as appropriate) 

Tackling poverty and inequality  
Reducing Health Inequalities  

Skills and Education (A Learning City)  
Affordable Housing  

Transport and Digital Connectivity  

Tackling the Climate Change Emergency  
Vibrant Place and Spaces  

Creating an Economy for All  

Page 25

Agenda Item 7

https://www.salford.gov.uk/cmpriorities


 

   
 

 

    
    
    
     

Purpose of Paper:                                    
 

The purpose of this paper is to provide Commissioning Committee with an update on the 
CCGs activities in the first 6 months of the financial year 2021/22 in relation to the 
Children’s and Maternity Services agenda. This paper covers the period April 2021 to 
October 2021. 

Children’s Commissioning Committee is asked to note the content of this report and 
comment as appropriate. 

 

 

 
 

Further information 

How will this benefit the health and wellbeing of 
Salford residents, or the CCG or City Council? 

 
Paper provided for information only 

 

How does this paper address health inequalities 
and promote inclusion? 

Paper provided for information only 

What risks may arise as a result of this paper 
and how will they be mitigated? 

N/A – any risks pertaining to the individual 
services/projects that are reported in this paper, 
will be managed within the usual risk 
management processes. 

Does this address any existing high risks facing 
the organisation and how does it reduce them? 

Paper provided for information only 

Are there any possible conflicts of interest 
associated with this paper? 

N/A 

Will any current services or roles be affected by 
issues within this paper and what are they? 

Paper provided for information only 

Note: Where appropriate, please ensure detail is provided. 

 

Page 26



 

   
 

 

    
    
    
     

Document Development 

Has there been Public Engagement? N/A 

Has there been Clinical Engagement? N/A 

Has the impact on Salford socially, economically 
and environmentally been considered? 

N/A 

Has there been an analysis of any impacts on 
equality? N/A 

Has legal advice been obtained? N/A 

Has this been to any groups or committees for 
engagement, comments, or approval?  N/A 

Note: Where relevant, please provide detail and ensure that it is clear how and when particular stakeholders were 
involved in this work, that there is clarity of what the key message/decision was, and whether amendments were 
requested about any part of the work.

Page 27



 

    

    
    
     

Children’s and Maternity Health Care Update 
 

1.  Executive Summary 

   
 
This paper provides an update on the CCG’s Children and Maternity health care 
programme for the first 6 months of the financial year (1st April – 30th September 2021). 
 
The paper offers a brief summary and overview of changes to the team within the CCG and 
the current progress of projects which the CCG is leading on or supporting as outlined in 
the annual plan. 
 
The Children’s Commissioning Committee is asked to note the contents of the update 
provided. 
 

 

2. Background 
 

2.1  The Service Improvement Team within the CCG is the team responsible for commissioning 
health services. The Team has recently undergone a restructure and as a result of this 
process the responsibility for Children’s and Maternity services has moved to sit within a 
different arm of the team. As a result of this process more people within the Service 
Improvement Team are working exclusively on the Children’s and Maternity programme.  A 
Head of Service improvement, Senior Service Improvement Manager and Service 
Improvement Manager deliver the programme.  The Deputy Direct of Commissioning 
continues to have an oversight role and involvement in some aspects of the programme.  
The majority of the team were in place by mid-May 2021 and received an extensive 
handover from the previous Senior Service Improvement Manager, who remains within the 
wider Service Improvement Team. 

 
2.2 A broad work plan was developed for 2020/21 and the CCG is working with colleagues to 

implement changes and review services. It has been challenging to progress some of the 
work due to the extensive pressure the pandemic has put on our colleagues in the 
community, acute and education sectors. In addition to the work plan there are ad hoc duties 
that arise, for example attendance at Care, Education and Treatment Reviews (CETR). This 
paper serves to provide an update on the first 6 months of the Programme in 2021/22. 

   
 

3. Children’s and Maternity Health Services Update  
  
3.1 Community Paediatrics 
 

The business case for additional investment into the community paediatric service was 
approved by the Children’s Commissioning Committee in September 2021. The Trust is now 
in the process of recruiting to the additional posts and the CCG is working closely with 
colleagues to ensure appropriate Key Performance Indicators are reported on.  

 
 
 
 

Page 28



 

    

    
    
     

3.2 Paediatric Equipment Services 
 

In 2019 a business case was presented to the CCG’s Service and Finance Group which raised 
concerns around the provision of children’s equipment across Salford and the resources 
available to maintain and recycle equipment when children grow out of it. 
 
A combination of new and recycled children’s equipment is provided to families.  This involves 
collecting, decontaminating, refurbishing or scrapping equipment as clinically indicated in line 
with guidance. One of the issues was that the adult technician team did not have the required 
skills to ensure appropriate maintenance of paediatric equipment. 
 
The business case contained data from the financial year 2017/18, during which time the total 
number of items on loan requiring a maintenance programme was 687. The total resource 
required to carry out the set up and maintenance was calculated at 1.25 Whole Time 
Equivalent (WTE). The business case requested funding for 12 months for a Band 4 technician 
and a Band 2 Administrator to test the viability of the posts and was approved. A longer-term 
investment is now being considered. 
 
The Head of Service Improvement and Senior Service Improvement Manager have worked 
with the integrated commissioning team and colleagues from Salford Royal and it has been 
agreed that a request to permanently fund the posts should be made. The request will be 
included in the business case for the wider Independent Living Service. 

 
3.3 Paediatric Avoidable Admissions 
 

The Paediatric Avoidable Admissions work was being picked up at a Greater Manchester level, 
but has now been paused. This work predominantly focussed on Asthma and at present there 
is no local ask. Work still needs to be done around the evaluation of the gastroenterology 
pathway and Advice and Guidance. These evaluations will be overseen locally by the Children 
and Young People’s Commissioning Group (CYPCG). The CCG will of course work with 
colleagues on Greater Manchester actions/tasks as and when they arise. 
 
The CCG has been working closely with Local Authority, Trust and Greater Manchester 
colleagues to plan for and reduce the pressure of an increase in the number of children 
presenting to the Paediatric Assessment and Decision Area (PANDA) with RSV (respiratory 
syntical virus) and bronchiolitis, human parainfluenza virus and rhinovirus. This increase has 
been linked to the relaxation of Covid-19 rules. Levels of attendances over the summer months 
were commensurate with the levels usually seen during winter. A robust winter plan is being 
developed in anticipation of a more difficult than usual season. The CCG commissions a city-
wide primary care COVID service for assessment and treatment of people with suspected 
COVID.  Early in the year, working with the PANDA unit, the pathway for children into this 
service was strengthened and clarified and more recently, with maternity services, the pathway 
for pregnant women.  Some of those children assessed in this service will have a respiratory 
illness other than COVID and this service helps the locality demonstrate compliance with 
RCGP guidance on management of children with respiratory illness. 
 
A task and finish group is being established in Salford to support this work and fully implement 
the national Asthma Care Bundle. 
 

Page 29



 

    

    
    
     

Previous work has been undertaken on the Diabetes, Epilepsy and Gastro pathways. This 
work was completed prior to this financial year and as yet evaluations have not been 
completed. There will be further work in these areas in the coming year.   

 
 
3.4 Paediatric Cancer Pathways 
  

Salford paediatric cancer pathways are identified as a risk on the CCG’s Programme Risk 
Register.  Greater Manchester Cancer referral guidelines for urgent (same day) referrals for 
suspected paediatric cancer assume a local paediatric inpatient service.  When these were 
first introduced in Salford they led to some confusion regarding clinical responsibility for 
some children with suspected cancer (as the PANDA unit is not a full inpatient service).  A 
local pathway had been agreed with community paediatricians and the PANDA unit, but not 
formally documented and communicated.  This creates the risk of further confusion in the 
future.  The pathway has now been documented and signed off by Greater Manchester 
cancer team, minor issues need to be finalised prior to this risk being fully mitigated. 

 
3.5 Paediatric Occupational Therapy and Physiotherapy 
 

Following a review of the services it was identified that additional resources were required to 
meet demand. It was hoped a business case for the paediatric physiotherapy and occupational 
therapy service would be completed by now. Unfortunately, the service was under immense 
pressure due to Covid-19 and wider, national recruitment issues therefore it took a longer time 
than first anticipated for them to collate the relevant information. Information was received in 
August and has been discussed. The Trust is updating some of the data provided and this will 
then be sent to commissioners to use to clarify what additional resource may be requested. It 
is unlikely a business case will be completed prior to the end of the financial year. 

 
 The CCG chairs the Therapies Expert Reference Group (ERG) so meets with the services 

regularly to discuss pressures, concerns and Greater Manchester and National initiatives. 
These meetings occur every 6 weeks. 

 
3.6 Orthotics Pathway 
 

The Orthotics service is part of the Therapies services which were reviewed in September 
2020.  The provider is keen to incorporate this pathway into the service, but this will require 
additional investment and forms part of a number of elements that were identified as gaps in 
provision. As explained above data was requested and provided to the CCG in August but 
needs to go through internal Salford Royal governance before this work can be progressed 
and plans prioritised.  

 
3.7 Paediatric Ophthalmology 
 

The Paediatric Ophthalmology service in Salford was made up of a team of Orthoptists from 
Salford Royal and they were supervised, and specialist interventions were delivered by a 
consultant Ophthalmologist from Bolton Foundation Trust. Unfortunately, the consultant 
retired, and Bolton were unable to provide a replacement and so served notice on the contract 
on 1st October 2017. The CCG reached out for support and Manchester Foundation Trust 
(MFT) agreed to provide services. It took time to organise the service, prepare contractual 

Page 30



 

    

    
    
     

arrangements and develop a new service specification. There were also issues with the 
suitability of the equipment in the clinic rooms at Pendleton Gateway.  

 
The CCG put out a PIN (Prior Information Notice) for the service to ascertain whether there 
were any other providers interested in and capable of delivering the service. MFT were the 
only organisation to express an interest and it was therefore appropriate for the CCG to 
contract with them directly. It was agreed that the Salford Royal staff would TUPE (Transfer of 
Undertakings (Protection of Employment)) to MFT. CCG contracting colleagues have been 
working with MFT and Salford Royal to finalise agreements for staff transfer. These 
conversations have understandably been delayed due to the Covid-19 pandemic. Removing 
staff from Salford Royal will affect the Stroke Pathway and there is an internal paper going 
through Salford Royal's governance to discuss and agree the approach. Unfortunately, this 
issue is now stopping arrangements from progressing and the service currently being 
delivered to children continues to be negatively impacted. Once this is complete the transfer 
can be finalised, and the new service specification put in place.  

 
3.8 Paediatric End of Life Services 
 
 This work has not yet begun. A review of Children and Young People’s (CYP) Counselling 

services was due to be published in November 2021.The review was originally being 
supported by a provider but in October 2021 it made the decision that it was unable to continue 
with this work. This piece of work forms an integral part of the paediatric end of life services 
review and a process is ongoing to identify a new provider. 

 
3.9 Children’s Community Nursing Team 
 
 The CCG re-specified the service in 2018/19. The following year Greater Manchester Health 

and Care Commissioning set up a task and finish group to review and update Children’s 
Community Nursing Team specifications. A new specification was finalised in October 2020. 
Since the start of the financial year 2021/22 the CCG has compared the Greater Manchester 
Service Specification with the Salford Service Specification to understand where they differ 
and where there might be gaps. Due to pressures in the service linked to supporting the roll 
out of the Covid-19 vaccine in schools the team requested that the work be paused for the 
time being. Once the Community Nursing Team feel they have the capacity to resume 
reviewing the new specification the work will be re-started. If a decision is made to change the 
current Salford specification to bring it in line with Greater Manchester a business case 
requesting additional resource may be required. 

  
3.10 Paediatric Speech, Language and Communication Needs Service 
 
 A new specification for the service was finalised in May 2019. A review of the service / new 

specification was planned after the first year. Unfortunately, this was not possible due to Covid-
19. Via the Therapies ERG the service has raised concerns that the specification is not 
comprehensive enough and discussions have also been ongoing about the outcomes 
framework within the specification. The Senior Service Improvement Manager has reviewed 
the Outcomes Framework and simplified the reporting requirements, where possible. 
Discussions are ongoing with the service regarding reporting as changes to computer systems 
at Salford Royal mean that it is difficult to pull some of the data requested. As with the 
paediatric physiotherapy and occupational therapy services Speech and Language are also 
facing a national recruitment crisis which when coupled with the pandemic has meant that the 

Page 31



 

    

    
    
     

service is under pressure to meet demand, this has been added to the CCG’s risk register. 
The CCG will continue to work closely with the service, capacity within the team allowing, to 
clarify and confirm the specification and outcomes framework. Additional requirements were 
included in the information provided for paediatric physiotherapy and occupational therapy and 
as detailed above this needs to go through internal governance at Salford Royal before the 
CCG can work with colleagues to prioritise plans and compile a business case. 

  
 
3.11 Healthy Start Vitamins 
 

In April 2017 a paper was presented to the Children’s Commissioning Comm ittee which 
provided an update on the Healthy Start Vitamins scheme. This paper reviewed the scheme 
against the indicators set within the service specification and provided options for the future 
commissioning of the service. The Committee agreed to the development of a local interim 
offer for healthy start whilst awaiting the development of a comprehensive Greater Manchester 
offer.  
 
An update paper was presented to CYPCG in May 2019 which set out the findings of the 
review and highlighted concerns that the service was being underutilised. In the absence of 
further plans from the Greater Manchester team, CYPCG agreed to extend the current 
contractual arrangements for a further 6 months. This was done to allow the provider time to 
implement the recommended changes, which included improvements to the recording of 
activity, increasing public promotions and sourcing additional distribution/collection sites. The 
Covid-19 pandemic impacted on the service being able to progress the above recommended 
changes, due to staff prioritising other work areas and as a result the current arrangements 
have rolled forward each financial year.  
 
The newly recruited Service Improvement Manager has started to review the Salford offer with 
a view to developing recommendations for the future of the service. The review is timely as it 
is in line with a national review of Healthy Start which will be re-launching as a digital scheme 
which offers a pre-paid card in place of paper vouchers. There is also work underway at 
Greater Manchester level to consider whether a proposal could be put forward for a universal 
scheme across all of Greater Manchester.   
 
 
3.12 Looked After Children (LAC) / Youth Justice Service (YJS) 
 
The CCG continues to support and monitor the LAC/YJS as they continue to work alongside 
the 0-19 service and safeguarding colleagues to ensure that vulnerable children and young 
people have their health needs met throughout the statutory processes.   
 
3.13 Ingleside Birth and Community Centre 
 
The CCG continues to work with partners to develop the maternity services delivered at 
Ingleside. A paper detailing the development of a new collaborative model will be presented 
to Children’s Commissioning Committee in January 2021. 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



 

    

    
    
     

3.14 Third Sector Fund 
 
Salford CCG (Clinical Commissioning Group) works in partnership with Salford CVS 
(Community and Voluntary Service) to shape a community-focused grants and investment 
programme aimed at addressing health inequalities across the city. This is known as the Third 
Sector Fund (TSF).  
 
During the first 6 months of the year grants have been awarded for a variety of projects. A 
Healthy Holidays Fund was set up with awards totalling £70,000 being given to 12 VCSE 
organisations to help to address holiday hunger. The original £25,000 of NHS Salford CCG 
money was boosted by support from funds secured by the City Council from the Department 
of Education. During July and August, the twelve VCSE organisations delivered a range of 
physical and wider activities and provided food to 1,219 children aged 4-16 (including 87 
children with SEND), with over 50% being eligible for free school meals. Over 6,500 meals 
were served it total. A Healthy Holidays (Winter) fund was also launched in September offering 
grants to support food provision and activities during the December holidays. 
 
One organisation which also received grant money via the Wellbeing Fund was Playful 
Transformations and they are working with children and families. They said, “The wellbeing 
award will enable us to reduce social isolation as well as help children release their emotions 
in a non-threatening, playful environment. Thereby offering them improved happiness and a 
feeling of wellbeing.” 

 
 

4. CCG Involvement in Workstreams  

 
4.1 The following table details the various recurrent meetings related to the Children’s and 

Maternity agenda attended by CCG staff. 
 
 

 
Meeting 
 

Frequency Attendee(s) 

Children’s Commissioning 
Committee 
 

Monthly 
 Deputy Director of Commissioning 
 

Children and Young Peoples 
commissioning Group 
(CYPCG) 

Monthly 

 Head of Service 
 Senior Service Improvement Manager 
 Service Improvement Manager 
 (Meeting chaired by CCG’s Clinical 

Lead for Children and Young People) 
 

SEND Partnership Board Monthly 
 Senior Service Improvement Manager 
 

Therapies Expert Reference 
Group (ERG) 

6 weekly 

 Head of Service (Chair) 
 Senior Service Improvement Manager 
 Service Improvement Manager 
 

0-25 Advisory Board  
 Deputy Director of Commissioning 
 Head of Service 

Page 33



 

    

    
    
     

 

Programme Oversight Group 
(POG) 

Monthly 

 Deputy Director of Commissioning (Co-
chair) 

 Head of Service (Co-chair) 
 

Greater Manchester 
Childrens and Maternity 
Consortium 

Monthly 
 Senior Service Improvement Manager 
 Service Improvement Manager 
 

Childrens Services Extended 
Leadership team 

Monthly 
 Head of Service 
 Senior Service Improvement Manager 
 

Neuro-developmental 
Pathway 

Monthly 

 Senior Service Improvement Manager 
 Service Improvement Manager 

 
 

Short Breaks 
Commissioning Group 
 

Monthly 
 Senior Service Improvement Manager 
 

Early Help Neighbourhood 
Operational Group 
 

Bi-monthly 

 Senior Service Improvement Manager 
(Attends when available – often clashes 
with CYPCG) 

 

Family Nurses Partnership 
Board 
 

Quarterly 
 Senior Service Improvement Manager 
 

Childrens Integrated 
Services Working Group 
 

Monthly 

 Head of Service 
 Senior Service Improvement Manager 
 Service Improvement Manager 
 

Ingleside Collaborative Monthly 
 Senior Service Improvement Manager 
 Service Improvement Manager 
 

GP/Midwifery Meetings Variable 
 Senior Service Improvement Manager 
 

GM SEND Health Monthly 
 Senior Service Improvement Manager 
 

Children with additional 
Needs (CAN) ERG 
 

Monthly 
 Senior Service Improvement Manager 
 

Parent Infant Mental Health 
(PIMH) Implementation 
Group 
 

Monthly 
 Senior Service Improvement Manager 
 Service Improvement Manager 
 

GM Childrens Asthma 
Working Group 

Monthly 
 Senior Service Improvement Manager 
 

Page 34



 

    

    
    
     

Salford Childrens Asthma 
Working Group 

TBC 
 Service Improvement Manager 
 

Development of the 
parachute team for Tier 3.5 
 

Fortnightly 
 Senior Service Improvement Manager 
 

Strengths Based approach 
for Young Peoples Mental 
Health and Distress 
 

Monthly 
 Senior Service Improvement Manager 
 

GM Special Schools - 
Nursing and Therapy 
 

Monthly 
 Senior Service Improvement Manager 
 

VOCAL Monthly 
 Head of Service 
 Senior Service Improvement Manager 
 

Looked After Children (LAC) 
/ Youth Justice Service 
(YJS) monitoring meeting 
 

Quarterly  Senior Service Improvement Manager 

Children’s Community 
Nursing Team monitoring 
meeting 
 

Quarterly  Senior Service Improvement Manager 

Spatial Planning Monthly 
 Senior Service Improvement Manager 

 

Independent Living Service 
liaison meeting 

Quarterly 
 Head of Service 
 Senior Service Improvement Manager 

 
 
 
 

5. Recommendations  
 
5.1 The Children’s Commissioning Committee is asked to: 
 

 Note the contents of this report 
 
 
Tori Quinn 
Head of Service Improvement 

 
 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No. 

 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PEOPLE 

 

TO 
Childrens Commissioning Committee  

ON  
January 2022 

 

TITLE: Update on Learning City  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Childrens Commissioning Committee is asked to note the progress and developments 

of the Learning City work and to consider the next steps for this programme of work. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
The report aims to provide a summary of the work that has taken place via the Learning 

City Steering Group following the Back to Your Future Conference with residents, 
community groups, partners, and city leaders from across Salford in March 2021 to 

launch the Learning City. 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
 Summary of Back to Your Future Conference feedback  

 Hackathon: Learning from Participants Summary 

 Feedback slides from initial Learning City People’s Panel  

 Learning City 12-month Action Plan  

 Life Hack Proposal   

 

KEY DECISION: No 

 

DETAILS: 
 
1. Introduction  

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 8



 2 

Salford has committed to supporting learning in its broadest sense, we want to help 
people value all types of learning. From Knowledge exchange (where people with lived 
experience share their learning) Citizenship (where people build connections to create 

a sense of community), Signposting (linking people to learning opportunities such as a 
local book club, cooking course, theatre workshop) or links into formal learning (such 

as school, college, university or employment training) we want the City to offer the 
widest opportunities to live, learn, play and stay.  
 

Building a learning city is a collective and continuing journey. It requires a concrete 
action plan with strong political leadership and steadfast commitment, a structured 

dialogue and consensus involving all stakeholders, diverse celebratory events charged 
with enthusiasm and inspiration, easy accessibility and enjoyable experiences for all 
citizens, proper monitoring and evaluation of progress, and sustainable and secure 

funding. Alongside the University of Salford, Salford City College, The Lowry, Salford 
CVS, and community groups the council is developing a different style of learning.   

 
Using our community’s knowledge and expertise, we will turn Salford into a dynamic, 
interactive academy of ideas with ‘no strings attached’ educational and developmental 

opportunities. It’s all about the joy of learning. 
 

For people who struggle with exams, tests and qualifications, Salford’s Learning City 
approach will support those who feel excluded from formal education. At the same 
time, the approach will recognise the knowledge and skills in our communities. 

Learners can also be teachers. 
 
Work is ongoing to encourage partners to take lead areas in this process and this paper 

provides an update on progress  
 
2. Back to Your Future Conference   

 
The aim of the conference was to the launch the Learning City by bringing together 

residents and City Leaders to shape the agenda for new pathways into learning and 
employment by connecting and amplifying formal, informal, and in work learning 

opportunities that exist across the City. 
 
Due to Covid-restrictions the conference was hosted online via Zoom and had 89 

attendees which included city leaders, community groups, training providers, students 
and staff from education settings and Salford residents.   

 
A group of residents formed a Community Panel and shared stories and lived 
experience about what learning means to them. The second part of the session was a 

Hackathon with the Community using facilitated breakout rooms to discuss a range of 
themes which were as follows: 

 
 How do we acknowledge lived experience and life skills? 
 How do we improve routes into formal learning and employment? What are 

the barriers? 
 How do we use learning from Covid to build a better, fairer, healthier, greener 

Salford? 

Page 38



 3 

 How do we engage people in contributing to the Learning City on an ongoing 
basis? 

 What do people want to learn about and how as a system do, we support that 

learning? 
 

The emerging key themes from the conference discussions are listed as below: 
 

 Learning for Jobs, Learning for Love, Learning for Life, Learning for Change, 

these ideas need to be debated more and given more content in order to 
transform the learning landscape in Salford.  

 How do we (re)motivate students after the Covid-19 lockdown and educational 
disruption.  

 The importance of accompaniment, mentoring, supporting throughout the 

learning journey was clear from many contributions.  

 Recognising trauma and mental health issues and their impact on learning was 

a strong theme.  

 Ensuring all communities are part of the process and identifying who we are not 

yet including.  

 The future of the digital economy and digital online learning. Ensuring everyone 

has a voice to ensure it doesn’t create new inequalities. 
 
A detailed and collated summary of all the conference feedback and an analysis of the 

learning that took place via the Steering Group is embedded below: 
 

 Collated feedback from conference participants  

Appendix 1  
 

 Learning from participants summary slides  
Appendix 2  

 
3. Learning City People’s Panel  
 

The People’s Panel was established by Salford CVS in May 2021, following the 
conference to assist with the community-led development of the Learning City and took 

place over two sessions to allow flexibility for residents wishing to contribute.  
 
The focus of the initial panel was Community Learning, a strong theme that emerged 

from the Conference and the feedback was linked into the Community, Learning and 
Development Consultation which was ongoing at the time.  

 
Further Peoples panels have taken place and representatives are varied.  
Suggestions made at the last panel included recording soundbites and case studies 

for people about how they have accessed community learning to enable them to get 
jobs. These will be promoted and will enable a further learning City conference to take 

place next year to reconnect people to the concept  
 
4. Lead provider for delivery of pilots and the model  

Salford Foundation are supporting the practical elements of the implementation plan 
with Short-, medium-, and long-term actions identified.  

Page 39



 4 

A priority Action Plan has been developed with specific areas of focus the next 12 
months which includes development of a test location to pilot new innovations, 
development of a Life Hack series which will engage learners from all ages about 

relevant areas of their lives including mental health, finance management, 
relationships,   

 
5. Development of a Learning City App  

 

The idea will be tested initially via the Peoples Panel to create a user-friendly tool for 
accessing courses and learning opportunities.  

Salford City College have offered for students to be involved in progressing this work 
and developing an app for the Learning City.   
 
6. Neighbourhood Learning Pilot 
 

Salford Foundation will be progressing work in the New Year to test and learn within 
a specific community to develop approaches for scale and spread across Salford.  
 
7. Community Life Hack Sessions 

 

Using the Open Space Conference methodology, a series of online all-aged range 
sessions will be arranged based on a range of subjects with the aim of giving 
residents opportunities to improve their lives and be more active in the community. 

Planning has commenced and the initial Life Hack session will take place on 13 th 
January to bring together a range of professionals to respond to residents’ questions 
about mental health (appendix 3)  

 
8. Recognition of non-formal learning through Digital Badging  

 

Ongoing discussions with Salford University linked to a piece of work through Salford 
Foundation to encourage and record non-formal learning outcomes.  

 
9. Links to GM Initiatives and funding opportunities  

 
Discussions are ongoing to link in with GM initiatives including the Curriculum for Life 
work and to consider ways to promote our work. Funding opportunities are also being 

explored to seek resource to support to Learning City. 
 
10. Community Learning  

 
SCC will be launching our Community Learning Cafes in January, the new outreach 

worker comes into post on the 4th of January and although they will be initially focused 
on an extended informal learning offer  for the Talk English programme, we have found 

funding that will extend the post initially for 12 months, so we can pilot the idea of 
informal learning clubs for the wider community (our brief is integration, but what better 
way to integrate than have all communities learning side by side). Skills and Work SCC 

are working with the college about aligning some of the community learning offer as a 
next step as well as adapting some community learning to support a more informal IAG 

offer. The work also links in Salford Foundation’s new Learning City Project and the 
Lowry’s Creative Caravan Plans.  

Page 40



 5 

 
11. Development of a Comms Strategy  
 

To be progressed via the Steering Group with support from internal comms as and 
when required. 

 
 
 
12. Other recent developments  
 

 Logo codesigned with community groups from Salford Foundation and 
Broughton Trust 

 Creation of a Learning City Leaflet to support the Conference launch which 

was co-designed and tested with a community group from Salford Foundation  
 Development of wider branding e.g., Twitter handle, social media 

 Learning City pages created on the MyCity Directory  
 Presentation to Corporate Management Team (CMT)  
 Reconnecting with Big Education Conversation  

 Alignment with the Great Eight priorities and funding agreed to support the 
Learning City developments  

 Connection with GM Curriculum for Life work  
 

 

 
13. Next Steps  
 

The Learning City Steering Group have developed a 12-month Action Plan which 
includes the following activity:  

 
 
 

Page 41



 6 

 
 

Learning City: 12-
month 
Implementation Plan 
- August 2021 
onwards                                              
PRIORITY ACTION LIST  Thematic Pillar Comments  Start End Status 

 GOVERNANCE            
Develop 12-month 
Implementation Plan  

Enabler Finalise and agree names against actions at 
Steering Group on 19 October 

01/09/2021 19/10/2021 In Progress 

Arrange bi-monthly 
Steering Group meetings 
and agree frequency for 
2022 

Enabler In diaries for 2021. Frequency and dates for 
2022 to be agreed and set up.  

01/01/2021 31/12/2021 In Progress 

Regular update reports to 
be scheduled at Lead 
Member Briefing  

Enabler First report shared on 10 September; next 
update due in January 2021.  

10/09/2021   Ongoing 

COMMUNICATIONS           

Distribution of Learning 
City leaflets  

Accessibility Distributed to partners and Gateways on 20 
September.   

01/09/2021 20/09/2021 Completed 

Develop Comms Strategy 
for Learning City  

Accessibility Covering Internal and External Comms     Outstanding 

Create a social media 
presence and share 
consistent messages across 
all partners including 
agreed hashtags etc 

Accessibility       Outstanding 

P
age 42



 7 

Development of Learning 
City app - identify 
developers, create project 
plan with embedded UX via 
People's Panel and other 
sources 

Accessibility Debbie Blackburn has had initial conversations 
with Alex Fenton, support offered from Salford 
University. Will need to link in employers.  

    Outstanding 

Prior to Apps Learning City 
App Creation develop and 
maintain Learning City 
pages on MyCity Directory  

Accessibility Need more support from partners to 
contribute and maintain accurate content on 
these pages. 

    In Progress 

VOICE / PEOPLE'S PANEL        

Deliver quarterly people 
panel sessions (based on 
panel feedback) - October, 
Feb, May, Aug 

Enabler Phil East and Mike Thorpe to support with 
recruitment.  Next Panel Scheduled Oct 21. 
Query re August date and school holidays 

19/08/2021   In Progress 

Mapping exercise to 
identify existing citizen / 
resident engagement and 
groups across the City 

Enabler 

Initial mapping shared with steering group. 19/08/2021   In Progress 

Consider ways to bring 
together insight from other 
panels and groups under 
Learning City  Enabler 

  19/08/2021   Outstanding 

Letter to be sent to the 
community panel speakers 
from the Conference 
inviting them to join the 
Panel 

Enabler Awaiting response from Marie Wilson re date 
and email addresses 

19/08/2021   In Progress 

Recruitment of two Panel 
reps to sit on the Steering 
Group  Enabler 

To be raised at October meeting 19/08/2021   In Progress 

Links to Universities to 
encourage Salford 

 
      

Outstanding 

P
age 43



 8 

Foundation work for co-
production of Health 
Visiting Courses 

INSIGHT / EVALUATION           

Identify the need in the 
City, including average 
reading age, identity 
opportunities and barriers 
for support Enabler       

Outstanding 

Link students from the 
University of Salford in 
supporting research 
around the work we are 
doing 

Enabler 

      

Outstanding 

PARTNERSHIP / 
CONNECTION TO 
BROADER ECOSYSTEM 

  

      

  

Arrange a Councillors 
meeting to promote  

Enabler  
      

Outstanding 

Identify and Agree Links to 
the Digital Inclusion 
strategy  

Enabler 
      

Outstanding 

Identify and Agree Links to 
the construction agenda 
skills builders  

Enabler 
      

Outstanding 

To strengthen relations 
with existing partners and 
expand its network to 
more external stakeholders 
cross-sector collaboration 
system, and allow the 
partner institutions to 
organise joint educational, 

Enabler More of an overarching objective than specific 
task etc 

    

Outstanding 

P
age 44



 9 

cultural, and social events, 
in cooperation with local 
schools and communities 
(Life Hack sessions) giving 
residents opportunities to 
improve their lives and be 
more active in the 
community. 
Ongoing processes of 
connecting non formal and 
form learning: Connect 
schools, senior leaders, and 
teachers etc to Learning 
City Principles, using LCEP 
to explore these links 

Enabler 

      Outstanding 

RECOGNITION OF 
LEARNING           

Recognition of non-formal 
learning, e.g., digital 
badges/Salford University 
student’s database and 
website to map and record 
informal learning outcomes 

Education System 

Links to Paul Haywood and Ruth Potts to also 
be explored.  

    Outstanding 

LEARNING IN FAMILIES 
AND COMMUNITIES            
Development of a 
Neighbourhood Learning 
Pilot  

Education System / 
Tacit and Informal 
Mechanisms       

Outstanding 

Community Learning 
Champions Network 
(including Young Carers) 

Civic Engagement 
      Outstanding 

Promote more community-
based learning spaces (e.g., 

Enabler 
promote how - spaces for courses / renting or 
broader? 

    Outstanding 

P
age 45



 10 

using museums, 
restaurants) 

Design and offer a free 
after school lesson 
including developing work 
with youth via VCSE and 
youth groups 

Education System / 
Tacit and Informal 
Mechanisms 

      Outstanding 

Encourage Provision for 
after school clubs and link 
with Youth Service 

Education System / 
Tacit and Informal 
Mechanisms 

Is the same as the point above? Duplicate     Outstanding 

Priorities from Peoples 
Panel equals Champions, 
skills swaps, coffee, and 
chats, sit ins on lectures or 
college class, online 
learning courses. 

Enabler 

Probably needs breaking down - some will be 
action plan some will be "parked" 

    Outstanding 

Design lifelong learning 
courses, specialised 
programmes to ensure 
lifelong learning for 
children, homemakers, 
retired and older people 

Education System / 
Tacit and Informal 
Mechanisms 

Does this duplicate the point above re after 
school learning? Is this part of Community 
Learning (adult skills budget) or another 
funding pot?      

Outstanding 

Develop a Human Library 
approach  

 Tacit and Informal 
Mechanisms 

      Outstanding 

COMMUNITY UNIVERSITY           
Link with the Peoples 
History Museum re: Engel’s 
work  

Civic Engagement 
      

Outstanding 

Module Community 
University on Working 

Civic Engagement  
Is this the same as the Engels work?     Outstanding 

P
age 46



 11 

Class Life in Salford 1842-
2022 

Explore a culture exchange 
learning programme to 
reduce racism and stigma  

Civic Engagement  
TBC     

Outstanding 

Develop an in-work 
learning strategy which 
supports the work of 
apprenticeships and future 
proofs links into formal 
academic learning. 
Including engagement plan 
and employer engagement 
opportunities ensuring 
links to six Key Growth 
Industries in GM  

Enabler 

merged several points into one - does 
ownership sit with learning city or skills and 
work?     

Outstanding 

PROJECT PIPELINE            

ACTIONS TO BE 
ADDED         

Outstanding 

          Outstanding 

          Outstanding 

 

P
age 47



 12 

 
 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  
Sits within the Great 8 priorities, Skills and Education (A Learning City). 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 
 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  There are a number of barriers which prevent residents 

across the city accessing learning and training opportunities, including mental health 
and confidence issues, language barriers and digital inclusion.  

 

LEGAL IMPLICATION: Not applicable 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: At present, there is no agreed budget for this work. 

Links to GM initiatives and support from partners that sit on the Steering Group to 

identify and explore potential funding bids to secure additional resource are being 
considered to assist with further development of the Learning City work.

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Not applicable  
 

HR IMPLICATIONS: Not applicable 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: Not applicable 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

 

CONTACT OFFICER:  

Debbie Blackburn, Assistant Director, Public Health, Nursing and Wellbeing  

0161 778 0246 debroah.blackburn@salford.gov.uk  

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All wards 

 
 

Page 48

mailto:debroah.blackburn@salford.gov.uk


 13 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Appendix 2 

 
 

Outline  
Building a learning city is a collective and continuing journey. It requires a concrete action plan 

with strong political leadership and steadfast commitment, a structured dialogue and 

consensus involving all stakeholders, diverse celebratory events charged with enthusiasm and 

inspiration, easy accessibility and enjoyable experiences for all citizens, proper monitoring and 

evaluation of progress, and sustainable and secure funding. Alongside the University of 

Salford, Salford City College, The Lowry, Salford CVS, and community groups the council is 
developing a different style of learning.   

Using our community’s knowledge and expertise, we will turn Salford into a dynamic, 

interactive academy of ideas with ‘no strings attached’ educational and developmental  

opportunities. It’s all about the joy of learning. 

For people who struggle with exams, tests and qualifications, Salford’s Learning City approach 

will support those who feel excluded from formal education. At the same time, the approach 

will recognise the knowledge and skills in our communities. Learners can also be teachers. 

Learning is about curiosity, openness, raising confidence, challenging prejudices, and 

committing time and patience to a project. Learning is a route to unlocking the secrets of the 

Page 49



 14 

world we all live in. It’s how we come to understand the organisations we interact with, make 

social connections, and become involved in civic life. Learning is something which benefits all 

of society. 

Event Vision  
The aim of the conference was to bring together residents and 

City Leaders to shape the agenda for new pathways into learning 

and employment by connecting and amplifying formal, informal, 
and in work learning opportunities that exist across the City. 

Due to Covid restrictions the conference was hosted online via 
Zoom. 

The conference had 89 attendees which included city leaders, 

community groups, training providers, students and staff from education settings and 
Salford residents.   

Session 1: Listening to the Community: Learning in Lockdown   
Panel facilitated by Phil East, Salford Foundation  

The Community Panel shared stories and lived experience about what learning means to them 

and was made up of the following group of residents : 

Samantha Goodwin, Salford Foundation Women’s Group 

Aaron Behan, Skills and Work Team, Salford Council currently on the Kickstart Programme 

Sonia Flores de Galvez, ESOL Student, Salford City College 

Tiffany Horabin, Second year student at Salford University with experience of the Care 

System  

Seamus Martin, Loaves and Fishes Community Group 

Dorothy Kaganowichid, Loaves and Fishes Community Group 

 

What does learning mean to residents? 

 Learning to me is gaining knowledge and trying to understand the reality of different 

things. This not only gives you a skill but also help in your development. 

 Acquiring new understanding  

 Confidence and making friends  

 Keeping my mind and body engaged 

 Being able to engage and learn new things  

 Knowledge  

 It helps you grow 

 Learning is expressing yourself, creativity in fun ways and being  happy through the 

entire process 

 Learning for me is an exciting challenge 

 Helps you with life skills like communication and knowing right from wrong  

 Learning for me is understanding the way things work and why they work how they 

do. Sometimes it can be taught and other times it can be a discovery 

Page 50



 15 

 Learning is a never-ending process 

 Learning is a collaborative process between people, information, and tools  

 Learning is growth and that's a process. I am a hungry learner, sometimes with a 

specific goal, sometimes the experience is the only goal that matters  

 Learning creates a sense of achievement which in itself adds to people general 

wellbeing, which coming out of this pandemic is gold. 

Session 2: Reflecting on the Panel Discussions  

Facilitated by Debbie Blackburn, Salford City Council  

What does a Learning City look like?  

 A celebration of learning within the city - mini Spirit of Salford events 

 Public recognition of ex-students in schools that have gone on to achieve through 

learning i.e. nurses, carers etc local people that children can relate to 

 I suggest, to make a platform to share experience and knowledge transfer 

What do people want to learn?  

 I want to learn new things so I can get more involved in stuff I can do with my child 

 I'd like to learn gardening and sewing 

 I feel like we don’t learn basic life skills like how to pay bills and first aid and basic food 

safety, we are kind of let off into the world expected to know it all when we aren’t 

taught it! 

 I'd love to learn Marine Biology 

 I would like the opportunity to learn Dutch and life skills such as mortgages debts etc. 

as you don't actually learn whilst at school 

 I'd also love to learn how to make a quiche 

 I'd like to learn to be a Councillor 

 I'd like to learn to be a Councillor for mental health 

 it would be great if the history of other cultures was included in education, and not 

just as an "extra" 

How do we shift the balance? 

 WEA has been my COVID silver lining. Most courses are free for people on many 

benefits and low income, and others are subsidised. Doing it by zoom has broken down 

geographical boundaries and allowed courses to run from a wider catchment. People 

have joined classes from their sick beds, who are shielding etc. I have learned more 

this year than in the decade before! Thankfully community courses are returning soon 

for people who prefer or need that access, but they'll maintain a digital presence as 

they can reach new people…love this organisation. 

 I think people tend to dislike subjects because of negative experiences but if we change 

the approach towards that subject then people will want to learn 

 I believe if you have a good and stable mental health, you can learn better and achieve 

more 

 Mainstream education prides itself too much on academic prestige being the 

equivalent to learning. Teachers are expected to cater to nearly 30 students, 

Page 51



 16 

sometimes more, all with different learning needs; they are expected to engage all 

students in a lesson and successfully teach them all. I think if we changed the 

foundations of education, we might reach more people who aren't seen or who are 

pushed away from education. 

 Improving the communication and interactions between students and teachers can be 

the first step. Teachers need to gain their pupils trust in order for them to share their 

problems with them. Teachers can only help the students when they know what's the 

student going through and then help them. So, it's crucial to focus on this. 

 I think if we use the VARK model to our advantage we could make a lot of change. It 

won't be an easy process or a short one, but it can change the life of so many in the 

future 

 I think that in PSHE lessons, things like LGBTQ+, Minority Ethnic groups etc, should be 

celebrated and talked about appropriately. It's something we celebrate as a 

community in Manchester, but it still isn't spoken about enough. 

 In order to improve the communication between students and teachers, there can be 

extra sessions every other two months maybe to improve their ways and interaction 

which can help in communicating with students and have a bond where students can 

share their difficulties with them. 

 The learning process is not only the government, society, or any other institution's 

responsibility.  We, as learners, need to be aware of what we are going to do with our 

knowledge, how we can contribute to support others with it.  A knowledge which is 

not shared is not worthy enough. 

 

Hackathon with the Community  

Topic 1: How do we acknowledge lived experience and life skills? 

Facilitated by Phil East, Salford Foundation 

1. Stigma of particular areas or communities and people who come from them was seen as 

a real issue in fostering a learning city culture. The use of ‘learning champions’ in 

communities and guest speakers going back to their old school were seen as two ways to 

start to break this. It needs to be ‘cool’ to learn in every community and on every street in 

Salford. 

 
2. Many people don’t realise the amount of transferable skills they have developed simply 

through living their lives. E.g. through running a family home. We need to find ways of 

helping people to appreciate, understand and map these skills – and for formal education 

and employers to value them. 

 

3. Younger people taking part really wanted to learn life skills (e.g. first aid, financial literacy). 

They felt these were undervalued in formal education and very little time or opportunity 

was given over to them. One idea was to have compulsory ‘Learning Conference’ or ‘Life 

Circus’ days (e.g. 2 per year). On these days, all formal learning would stop and there would 

Page 52



 17 

be a wide array of informal skills sessions that people could choose to take part in at their 
school or college. 

 

4. The group felt there should be a wide array of opportunities to celebrate learning and 

achievements gained through life skills and lived experience. E.g. displays, events, social 

media posts. Rather than a ‘system’ of recognising this kind of learning, let’s start with 
mass celebration! 

 
5. The over-reliance on exams and a lack of continuous assessment in formal education were 

seen as a significant barrier to enabling people to progress who have non-traditional 

learning journeys. Changing this will help those with lived experience and life skills to 

progress. Rather than formal or even short courses, could there be more ‘bite-size’ 

learning opportunities (e.g. just one or 2 hours long)? Could people gain ‘credits’ for 

participation? And could credits be added to a ‘passport’ which has an annual ‘learning 

allowance’ for every resident? And could the ‘passport’ also be used as a progression tool 

into formal learning or paid employment?  

 
6. No employers or formal learning providers were present in this group to explore how they 

could value and recognise life skills and lived experience in a systematic way. It was felt 

strongly that employers shouldn’t ask for qualifications unless they are a legitimate 

occupational requirement (e.g. a sometimes-arbitrary requirement to be educated ‘to 

degree level’ or to have ‘5 A-C GCSEs’) 

 

7. Those present felt it was very important that decision makers and budget holders  

recognise the significant mental and physical health benefits gained through informal 

learning/ soft skills opportunities. 

 

Topic 2: How do we improve routes into formal learning and employment? What are the 

barriers? 

Facilitated by Angela Arthur, Salford City Council and Charlotte Morris, Salford University  

 Barriers to Learning and Learning at Work 

 Lack of confidence 

 Lack of aspiration: family not supported or aspire for them or self to progress  

 Lack of information: what can be learned now and beginning 

 Careers guidance offer needs to be better recognising that not everyone can do the 

‘top jobs.  Pandemic has highlighted that certain ‘low level’ roles are just as important, 

and they should be recognised. 

 Relevance of offer: life skills, relevant to what they need in life, engaged in learning  

 More emphasis on the value of learning 

 More emphasis on job roles – not just L3 and above, learning for what someone wants 

to do in life 

Page 53



 18 

 Confidence courses to overcome and break down barriers 

 Different routes into learning at different life points  

 Extra wrap around support-similar to job support but into learning 

 Digital isolation  

 Schools/ teachers and staff need to know where to signpost parents for community 

learning/HE offer.  Advocacy and networks. 

 Employers should encourage learning within workplace both related to existing role 

but also anything to aid personal development maybe unrelated to specific job role.  

Will indirectly benefit the organisation. 

 Current learning offer doesn’t always work for people who are in work.  Need to be 

more choices.  Need to know more about what people want to learn- providers need 

intelligence. 

 Bricks and mortar of learning facilities don’t always fit for people’s circumstances.  

Education industry an archaic non inclusive model and expensive. On-line learning is 

the way forward.  Degrees are too long and not relevant to job roles.  Counter 

argument degree study develops critical thinking skills. Being challenged.  Nothing 

compares to a live teaching session.  Hybrid of live/online learning.  Community 

university needed in Salford. 

Employment  

 Few opportunities to develop themselves only job-related training 

 Providers are limited with what they can deliver doesn’t always fit what people want 

 Employers may not want people to learn in in work’s time 

 Don’t always know what people want to learn, lack of intelligence on what is needed 

 Outdated model of delivery - Covid has made it clear learning can be delivered in a 

different way 

 Models of delivery don’t always fit people’s lives  

 Cost too high 

Topic 3: How do we use learning from Covid to build a better, fairer, healthier, greener 

Salford? 

Facilitated by Debbie Blackburn, Salford City Council 

 

Building a Fairer Salford  

1. The group discussed the Collective experience of lockdown and agreed there were 

some positives and discussed how we use learning from the lockdown to reduce 

inequalities 

2. Digital inclusion has been an issue for lots of students and have missed out on learning 

some students haven’t had access to equipment of Wi-Fi but some of the positives 

were that Microsoft Teams was a really useful space for some people as an educational 

tool. The group considered the role of businesses in supporting different routes for 

employment and recruitment processes  

Page 54



 19 

3. The college students asked: How do you plan on improving home learning in the event 

of another lockdown: Discussion about businesses providing hotspots for people 

around schools and employers seeking to reduce the impact of lockdown on those 

young people affected  

4. Many young people will have been affected by the grades they have received and the 

group discussed the possibility of Universities lowering their threshold for acceptance 

and employers such as the army looking at creative routes for recruitment  

5. Discussion about the structural barriers for many young people due to the inability to 

afford or commit to student loans to attend University  

6. We cannot disadvantage a whole generation we know there will be Budget issues as a 

country but previous generations had access to free education 

7. What the role of local businesses might be GM Chamber of Commerce interested in 

digital poverty looking at wider than the statutory sector  

8. We know that our traditional system disadvantages people from different identities: 

how we can learn from what people have done over the last year e.g.  deaf people 

difficult via Teams new opportunities which weren’t available a year ago, how do we 

think of people who wouldn’t necessarily engage with this approach  

9. Where are the future opportunities going to be in terms of future employment? we 

know where the opportunities will be for the current Growth industries but how do we 

encourage people into more Greener opportunities?  

8. We heard from people who talked about bad experiences of school and having the 

stuffing knocked out of them and the saying success breeds success school but what 

about children who don’t experience that success and the number of children who 

leave school with no qualifications  

9. Scheme introduced into school whereby six week slots year six children hands on 

courses photography woodwork and gardening led to qualifications at level 1 gave less 

acadaemic children a sense of achievement (not sure what exam board) for future 

employer and also academic  

10. Teach to the qualification as an accredited centre and could create their own 

qualifications  

11. Could there be a pooled skill set for teachers using teams teaching to share wider skill 

sets than curriculum based learning?  

12. People with autism unemployment rate of people with autism 80% of people who are 

not employed some organisations are planning what type of jobs would be suitable for 

autistic people what jobs can we tailor to those people breaking down perceptions of 

people and make adjustments for  

13. How would people design recruitment processes?  

14. Employers in all sectors need to change the image of different groups how do we 

create different pathways that acknowledge what people are good at not their 

disability  

15. How do you know about learning opportunities in the City and how do you know about 

jobs? It is a complex system  

 

 

Page 55



 20 

Building a Greener Salford  

1. In the pandemic many people have developed a love of gardening and connection to 

green spaces many people have been helping people learn how to grow their own food, 

however there is a lack of growing space, could churches and businesses allow ‘land 

grabbing’ where unused green space could be used to grow food? Many allotment 

spaces rarely become free  

2. Obesity is an increasing issue and has impacted on survival rates Nationally as part of 

the pandemic how do we focus not on physical activity but  with an Emphasis on moving 

and  getting people out and interacting with each other  

3. Middlesborough are rethinking their town centre plans by turning the city centre into a 

green leisure space:  how do we make the city centre a green space?  

4. There is a focus on green spaces in Salford but how do people get to those places, cycle 

lanes, transport needs to be improved   

5. There is a need to focus on community initiatives and get togethers when safe to do so 

to create that sense of community  

6. How do we promote our green spaces?  

 

Building a Healthier Salford  

1. What are we going to do to support those students who have lost motivation during 

the pandemic? The group discussed Mental health support for all ages and felt this was 

a key priority and the need to share resources for people to access themselves, summer 

programmes would really help  

2. What support is available for mental health into the curriculum impact of virus and the 

mental health issues needs men’s groups and women’s groups need a more nurturing 

approach  

3. Discussed the need for more easily accessible Yoga groups and mindfulness courses  

4. How do we create Healthier environments?  

5. Gender stereotypes need to be challenged in school, colleges and workplaces women 

in STEM ambassadors are needed we need a representative workforce  

6. Important to break down gender stereotypes in institutions more Female tutors in 

subjects that have been more Male dominated and Male teachers into hair and beauty 

etc 

7. Stereotypes of people as jobs start when children are as young as five we need to get 

images in front of children of Female engineers and Male nurses etc  

8. Why not create learning institutions designed by young women  
 

Innovative Thinking  

1. We know that there are different ways that people learn, formal education system are 

one way but what opportunities there would be to create different learning spaces for 

people? We know that lots of shops are going to shut, is there opportunity in town 

centres to create learning spaces  

Page 56



 21 

2. What opportunities are there to help people learn for themselves? In other parts of 

the country communities have set up initiatives to enable people to learn for 

themselves can we build on those structures or create our own?  

3. Could we create a system which values all types of learning for children and adults, in 

schools’ additional level one qualifications which celebrate achievements such as 

photography, wood working, music, demonstration of steady worker and committed 

and reliable employee  

4. Could we create Digital badges for learning?  

5. Could we create an approach to celebrate achievements either via the City Council or 

other partners to celebrate success no matter how small  

6. Strategy on improving the growing spaces in Salford which includes Land Grabbing, 

learning to grow and cook on small scale and feed into a community café and food 

banks to support healthier eating  

7. School children or teenagers and adults learning in free time learn languages online 

maths and English foreign IXL.com where fees are involved council could bulk buy at a 

discounted rate and supplement course purchases? 

8. There is a need to link young people at college to university students to provide role 

models for young people  

9. Explore Rekindle school model which is designed by young people not designed by 

adults designed by young people for whom school didn’t work own curriculum  

10. Salford with a new economic strategy to develop a new learning institution 

cooperative approach   

16. Employment and employment opportunity focus on education qualifications a lot of it 

is about who you know if we really want to change the life opportunities of people in 

Salford those who are not necessarily connected how do we create the spaces for 

those people to get to know the right people? Could the people’s panel be the 

connector for the City as anchor organisations?  

17. Need a directory of opportunities: Action for us to update learning city directory and 

add the information around courses and sewing groups  

 

Topic 4: How do we engage people in contributing to the Learning City on an ongoing 

basis? 

Facilitated by Marie Wilson and Anne-Marie Marshall, Salford CVS 

How do you want to be engaged as a resident in Learning City? 

 Using varkk model. Teachers claim to use all four sections to engage different learners. 

Take a school have them take the vark test. E.g. Are they visual and audible learners. 

Then adapt lessons to suit. Establish the changes it makes. 

The VARK model of learning styles suggests that there are four main types of 

learners: visual, auditory, reading/writing, and kinesthetic. The idea that students 

learn best when teaching methods and school activities match their learning 

styles, strengths, and preferences grew in popularity in the 1970s and 1980s. 
 

Page 57



 22 

 Listening came out strongly so we need to ensure the panel isn't tokenistic. Feeding 

into decision makers but also a feedback loop. You said we did.  

 Want a seat on the Steering Group/Groups 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

What ways do you want to get involved in the Learning City to influence it? 

 Possibly influenced by fact on a virtual conference but surveys and virtual meetings 

came out top for the format of the people's panel.  

 Feelings that virtual meetings are more accessible one gotten over technical issues as 

no travel needed but also things like childcare.  

 Asked about type of surveys - concerns that people don't get feedback from them. 

Easy to do but not to complete full engagement. Would want to use as the start of a 

conversation rather than the end. Need the ability to opting in for feedback.  

 

Salford is a dynamic and diverse city; how do we ensure that we engage with a wide range 

of peoples voices in the Learning City? 

 Mentioned about using champions within community’s, schools, and college settings.  

 Using incentives or funding community groups.  

 How do you get your information? These days - delegates mentioned emails. Tend to 

dismiss bulk and non-personal ones. Need to brand it well - title and style etc. Avoiding 

information overload.  

 Speaker events - topics specific where speakers talk about their visions and 

plans/where we can discuss and build relationships. 

 Social media is key source of finding information. 

 Data analytics - collecting insight on needs and using it to inform. Both what we should 

do but also gaps.  

 Off shoot re the balance of power in relationships. Residents not aware of their 

ultimate power in democratic systems.  

Page 58



 23 

 Old school neighbourhood bulletin - doorstep leaflets/posters/neighbourhood boards. 

Community assets/GP examples. 

 Asked re Salford life, gets flicked through but might not have the reach or audience we 

want.  

 Create a forum / channel where people can share thoughts, ideas and express 

themselves.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

What are your hot topics, that the Learning City People’s Panel should address/focus on 

first? 

 System change. If we got the education system to work, we wouldn't need as much 

adult education. 

 Support early years and new parents 0-5 importance of early years and parents’ role 

in the education system.  

 Early intervention with additional support in the educational journey.  

 Tools to teach  

 How to learn  

 Volunteering programme - bringing in people with life experience who don't want to 

be teachers or can't be teachers (for whatever reason). Peer learning, informal talks.  

 Learning sessions open to all to broaden awareness and raise aspirations.  

 Comments linking back to learning style idea above 

 

What does successful engagement look like to you? 

 Not about lecturers about people getting together and communicating not being 

passive.  

 Creating spaces for the conversations and to process the learning etc.  

Page 59



 24 

 Need for hybrid approach as virtues to both processes 

 Successful engagement echo’s themes earlier - feeling like one voice, updates, and 

outcomes. No daft questions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Topic 5: What do people want to learn about and how as a system do, we support that 

learning? 

Facilitated by Paul Healy, Salford City College  

 Discussed issues around mental Health and how we can learn if we are not are 

supported and having somewhere to go if we are struggling. Difficulties around 

learning regardless of how good the education setting, or training provider is if people 

are struggling with mental health. 

 Discussed the need for more 1-1 support within establishments to ensure that both 

the learner and staff get to know each other and know who is there to offer support.  

 It was noted that there are time pressures to offer 1-1 support.  

 Less cramming and more learning. It was discussed that the focus is always on 

preparing for exams and assessments and there is lots of pressure and intense learning 

and that we are not learning holistically.  

 Discussed confidence and that by attending a college course or training programme 

this has helped improved confidence and communication skills but were aware that 

some people don’t have that initial  confidence to enrol on a course and how can we 

better support people to do this.  

 The group had lots of aspirational career aims from developing vaccines, to working 

for British aerospace.  

 

Pledges  

What are we going to take as an action?  

Page 60



 25 

What are you going to take as an action?  

What is the Learning City Steering group going to take as an action?  

What as a City do, we need to take as an action/s? 
 

 It would be really good to create pathways for entrepreneurial young people! At 

present, there are almost none: the narrative given to most young people relates only 

to becoming an employee. 

 To make the adult learning offer more widely known in the city 

 To make the most out of learning could we consider a passport to learning, give adults 

an allocated number of hours to use towards their choice of learning, i.e. sewing, 

gardening. More community space.  

 To promote Learning City, the directory, and the People's Panel to the wider VCSE 

sector 

 To keep an interest in improving education in any way I can 

 The school-based Learning for Life open conferences are really seen as a positive so 

the group needs to see how this can become embedded 

 To make learning more fun and enjoyable for everyone- some people find learning and 

going to school boring 

 We need to develop a real and honest plan to deliver the concept of a learning City to 

all 

 To keep listening and learning from others and sharing my own learning  

 To continue to raise positive awareness of people working in care and the learning 

opportunities they should get 

 To be involved in making learning fun through creative writing of stories and poems 

for those who enjoy the creative route 

 Corinth will be instrumental in continuing to make available to all its learning offer that 

includes a range of Confidence Building, IT, Microsoft Office, photography, Photoshop, 

Web Building, Customer Services, English, and Maths community courses  

 Keep on working towards getting actual knowledge and pass it on to others. Learn from 

and with others. Support each other and help them believe in their potentials again. 

 To take more of an interest in these kinds of meetings and to not cram while learning. 

Also, to ensure to understand fully what the teacher is teaching 

 To work on my own learning and never stop, and to pass on the new things I learn to 

others and try to develop their interest in learning as well  

 To work with the community, our partners, and stakeholders to identify barriers,  

challenges, and community needs  - and to work with our providers to tailor provisions 

according to needs of the community 

 

 

 

 

Page 61



 26 

Emerging Themes 

A list of the themes emerging throughout the discussions and chat function are summarised 
as follows: 

 Learning for Jobs, Learning for Love, Learning for Life, Learning for Change, these ideas 

need to be debated more and given more content in order to transform the learning 

landscape in Salford. 

 Urgent and immediate issues also emerged from the Conference, such as how to 

(re)motivate students after the Covid-19 lockdown and educational disruption, 

 The importance of accompaniment, mentoring, supporting throughout the learning 

journey was clear from many contributions. 

 Recognising trauma and mental health issues and their impact on learning was a strong 

theme. 

 Making sure all communities are part of this process is also essential, and who we are 

not yet including. 

 How do we best communicate? Social media and/or a neighbourhood bulletin? 

 The future of the digital economy and digital online learning is on the immediate 

horizon and needs everyone’s voice to ensure it doesn’t create new inequalities.  

 

Feedback from Attendees 

“What an inspiring discussion! I hope it spreads” 

“Thank you all - this has been so informative and life-changing” 

“Wow! Everyone's story is fascinating and shows determination and commitment”  

“Just wanted to thank you properly for the excellent conference on Thursday. I particularly 

found the People’s Panel very powerful and it certainly  gave a strong starting point to the 

event. I hope we have some specific actions/pledges from the day that we can work on 

together to make a reality. There was plenty of energy at the conference, so perhaps the 

next challenge is harnessing that and breaking it down into something concrete. Thanks 
Again for inviting us to be a part of this positive process” 

“I would like to take this opportunity to say thank you very very much for Having me on 

zoom call, for giving me that grace to communication out to others, especially during these 

uncertain times of lockdown.  Thank you again for your  excellent organisation of the zoom 

conference, it was like being there with all others in person suddenly the zoom walls 

disappeared and you were engrossed in a sister or brothers life story. We are all a family. 

I  enjoyed every moment of it. I hope and pray there will be more to follow. God Bless you 

All Abundantly” 

 

 

Page 62



 27 

People’s Panel  

Provisional dates arranged as follows: 

Wednesday 26 May, 10am – 12pm 
Thursday 27 May, 4pm – 6pm 

Next Steps  

 To include representation from the People’s Panel on the Learning City Steering 

Group 

 To be agreed on 14 April 2021 when the Steering Group meets  

 

 

 

Appendix 2  

 

 

Page 63



 28 

 

 

Page 64



 29 

 

 

Page 65



 30 

 
 

 

Page 66



 31 

 

 

Page 67



 32 

 
 
 

Page 68



 33 

 

Page 69



 34 

 

 

Page 70



 35 

 

 

Page 71



 36 

 

 

Page 72



 37 

 

 

 
 

Page 73



 38 

 

 

Page 74



 39 

 
 

 

Page 75



 40 

 

 
 

Page 76



 41 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 77



 42 

 
Appendix 3  
 

 

 

Page 78



 43 

 

 

Page 79



 44 

 

 

Page 80



 45 

 
 
 
  

Page 81



 46 

Appendix 3  
 
 

LEARNING CITY LIFE HACK SESSION 

 

 

 

 

Date: To be agreed for January 2022 

Time: 5pm – 6pm 

Platform: Virtual session via Zoom  

Theme: Mental Health and Wellbeing  

Professionals identified to deliver: 42nd Street, CAMHS, GMMH, colleagues from Children’s 

and Adult Mental Health Commissioning Teams at Salford City Council  

Supported by: Members of the Learning City Steering Group  

How to register: by completing the survey and adding your contact details at the end, 

residents will then be emailed the Zoom link in advance of the session. Alternatively, if 

residents don’t wish to complete the survey, they can contact Clare Hopton at 

clare.hopton@salford.gov.uk who will arrange for them to receive the Zoom link. 

The session will explore the following areas: 

 Understanding Yourself (gain knowledge of, and experiment with different methods of 

self-care, such as writing a reflective journal or poetry) ‘figuring out what works for you 

through trial and error’ 

 Transforming your Thinking (consider coping mechanisms to help with stress 

management, and improve your mental health, such as physical activity and exercise)  
 Conquering Stigma and Labels (recognise and overcome the potential stigmatising and 

discriminatory effects of mental health labels) ‘learn to accept mental health conditions as 

PART of our identity’ 

 Developing a Sense of Purpose and Community (recognise the significance of 

community engagement and volunteering, for individual empowerment, in order to build a 

sense of purpose and community)  
Comms: 

 Support identified from Sian Ilett, Salford Council Comms Team  

 Comms to be drafted to promote the session and to include the Qualtrics QR code 

and link to the survey to consult with residents prior to the session (closing date for 

survey 3 December) 

 Survey narrative and questions for the Qualtrics survey  

Page 82

mailto:clare.hopton@salford.gov.uk


 47 

 Residents can access Qualtrics by scanning a QR code or from accessing the link to be 

shared in all comm 

 

 

 

Logo and opening tagline for comms: 

Join us, and together, lets transform Salford into a 

‘Learning City’ – one characterised by opportunity, 
community, and empowerment.  

 

 

 

Link and QR code to survey: 

TO BE ADDED 

Main text for opening page of the survey: 

Welcome to the Salford Learning City Partnership survey on Mental Health and Wellbeing!  

This survey is being conducted as part of the ‘Salford Learning City’ initiative , which seeks 

to develop a new model of community education.  

We are currently planning a series of virtual ‘Life Hack Sessions’, to provide a space for 

Salford residents (aged 18 and above), to engage and collaborate with each other; as well as 

receive advice and support from professionals on a range of topics.  

The first ‘Life Hack Session’ will focus on Mental Health and Wellbeing. We have therefore 

created this survey to help us plan, and tailor the session to residents specific needs.  

The survey takes no more than 5-minutes to complete and will remain open until midday on 

DATE.  

Your participation is voluntary, and the survey does not ask you to provide identifiable data. 

If you start the survey and do not wish to continue, you may withdraw by closing your 

browser. 

Following completion, you will be presented with an option to provide your contact details 

if you wish to attend the upcoming ‘Life Hack Session’ on DATE at TIME on Zoom.  

Thank you for your invaluable input.  

Promotion of the survey and session:  

 Salford Council Social Media channels – paid Facebook post (Sian) 

Page 83



 48 

 Promoted to the workforce via Chief Exec Briefing/page on the Intranet (Sian) 

 Comms to be circulated across partner networks via Steering Group members (Clare)  

 Promotion on Partners Social Media channels (ask via Steering Group) 

 Promotion on Public Social Media pages (Tallulah) 

 Promotion with Schools (via weekly briefing send to Cathy Starbuck and Anne 

Tattersall) 

 Any further suggestions? 

 

 

 

Page 84



| 1

Sub-Group/Programme: THRIVE Partnership        Lead: Emily Edwards

Work programme context:
Salford Thrive: supporting children and young people’s emotional health and wellbeing

Programme structure and implementation:

Our structure chart needs updating to reflect recent developments, especially around MHiE which includes:  the 

Thrive in Education Programme Oversight Board and  TIE Operational Managers Group; and a Physical Activity on 

Prescription advisory group. The Early Years working Group no longer exists but a new PIMH Implementation Group now 

oversees this work and this will feed into the 1001 Days governance (under Becky Bibby).

Progress summary (last 8 weeks): (high level and by exception)

• Thrive in Education programme: Q2 reports showed 107 referrals into the team, 158 
contacts, 115 cases closed with 2+ contacts, and 248 individual YP were supported. 
12 months reports have been received form providers and are being 
reviewed/collated into a combined report which will go to GM before xmas and to 
Scrutiny Committee in January.

• Neuro Development Pathway: the steering group has met to review/consider a 
number of urgent issues in the current structure and pathway that will require a 
decision in January to ‘pause’ to new referrals whilst issues are resolved. A report 
recommending pathway re-design and urgent additional capacity will follow this. We 
are awaiting confirmation of GM funding for additional non-recurrent funding to 
address waiting times for CAMHS diagnosis and S&LT, pre and post diagnostic 
support.

• PIMH work programme: the PIMH Implementation Group continues to meet to 
oversee mobilisation. New requirements have just been shared by the GM clinical 
Lead which need unpicking with the steering group. The NDP Lead post is now out to 
recruit and other vacancies will follow on a staggered basis.  

• Surge Pressures: providers continue to report service pressures resulting from 
increased demand and significant complexity/acuity and impacts on the workforce. A 
decision is awaited on the joint Salford, Manchester and Trafford 42nd street GM 
waiting times proposal. This is expected on 17.12.21

• A number of business cases are in development to be taken via SFG between Jan –
March 22: Drama Workshops in Schools, 42nd street Services, Dad’s Matters, Gaddum
Bereavement and Palliative Care Counselling. 

• CYPMH and CAMHS service updates have been sent to GPs and to all schools, with 
follow up input to schools DSL meeting and plans to launch consultation meetings in 
2022 to advise on specific cases (mental health and neuro developmental).

Outlook summary: (next 8 weeks) 
• Continued CAMHS/wider services joint work to progress system 

transformation plans to manage COVID related increased demand and 
pressures:  1. For 7 day follow ups from A&E to a) reduce the burden on 
CAMHS, b) widen the support/options for children and families c) reduce 
the repeat attendances to A&E through targeted follow up with YP and 
referring professionals (especially schools) and education around 
alternative strategies and how to access timely advice and support when 
needed. 2. To test a Single Point of Access via the Bridge.  Anticipated  to 
start April 2022 with an initial focus on GP referrals.

• CAMHS COVID surge plan to ‘business as usual’ now been deferred due to 
on-going service pressure. This will remain under review locally and across 
the MFT footprint with joint approaches, including managing 
pressures/service impacts in the Children's Eating Disorder Service. (CEDS).

• Ongoing - Thrive Network: weekly email updates, EHWB webpages being 
kept updated, online directory updated, and analytics show is well used.

• Set up a NEW bookable and/or drop-in slots for Schools designated MH 
leads (MHLs) to access advice and support with Individual cases/general 
mental health concerns and neuro developmental needs. This will be co-
ordinated via the TIE team, with support from the EP Service, NDP leads 
and Early Help Schools Co-ordinators.

0-25 Transformation: Highlight Report
Please return to Clare Hopton clare.hopton@salford.gov.uk

P
age 85

A
genda Item

 9

mailto:clare.Hopton@salford.gov.uk


Upcoming Milestones/Next steps/Key Decisions Date

Decisions awaiting from GM on 42nd street waiting list proposal and CAMHS Neuro Development proposal. 17.12.21

Risks 

• Ongoing - Surge demand and pressures in CYP MH services. This continues to be monitored in the usual way. CAMHS COVID Surge Plan prioritisation deferred and
commissioners informed of additional pressures related to MFT Childrens Eating Disorder Services, particularly in Manchester and Trafford but this will impact on
the team/service capacity in Salford.

• Continued need to make better use of the Kooth offer from Sept to help reduce pressure elsewhere in the system.
• Schools directing YP and families via GPs and A&E – communications have been issued to support this.

Summary of Risk Summary of Mitigation RAG Rating 
COVID surge, service and CYPMH system 

pressures

1. Service updates and COVID Surge in December – ongoing review and comms to wider Thrive 
system and professionals.

2. 50% staff capacity in CAMHS  that continue to be managed though service redesign / 
reconfiguration of resources and ongoing recruitment. Recruitment of the PIMH Pathway lead 
and team is underway. The CAMHS School (TiE / MHST) lead started a secondment role in Nov 
21 and is now only covering Salford 1 day per week until a new TiE Schools lead  is recruited. 
MFT are recruiting additional business support roles and have appointed a new Deputy 
Director who will bring additional SLT and clinical capacity to Salford (started 6.12.21)

3. 42nd street have had a number of new starters taking up new posts in Salford  and this is 
continuing to positively impacting on waiting times.  A new 42nd st Schools and College Lead 
has now started in post.

4. Services are doing their best to manage staff wellbeing and remaining staff capacity.
5. Future discussions between CCG , GM and MFT re CYPMH funding flow will be required to 

sustain the 2 additional CAMHS posts approved for non recurrent funding for 2 years.
6. CCG/Council MH finance group now meeting regularly to review MHIS plans/financial pressures 

and funding requirements.
7. Parachute team (de-escalation and step-down support for YP in distress) is in development. 

Financial spend/requests:

No, but note the 3 business cases to SFG Jan – March 2022:
• Drama in Schools Workshops recurrent funding and 4-year contract @ £12.5k per year (Jan)
• 42nd street Service re-design and business case (Feb)
• Dad’s Matter (Homestart) business case for recurrent funding as part of PIMH programme (Feb)
• Bereavement and Palliative Care Counselling (Gaddum) recurrent funding (March)

Issues for escalation ( through 0-25 Advisory Board and/or Commissioning Committee)

None.

P
age 86



| 1

Sub-Group/Programme:        Voice of the Child Lead: Tim Rumley

Work programme context:

Given the challenges of engaging young people in COVID coming out of lockdown and potentially returning to it over teams, the Voice of the Child group has reviewed 
the way it has operated and the Youth council meetings on a monthly basis have taken over the operational delivery of the work of Voice of the Child plan

Youth Voice family meetings are taking place bimonthly. The December meeting the reps (from Youth Council SEND Youth Forum FFCC, LGBT+ groups, and Homes 
education) agreed to work on a single joint project as well as their own campaigns. As the 0-25 Advisory board were focusing on childhood obesity,  the youth voice 
family agreed to explore the issue of childhood obesity jointly. There was a full and frank discussion about the issue and the young people agreed to take back the ideas 
to the groups for ideas (some initial thoughts were around a barriers to PE in school, cooking in schools, be more active day to day).

The Voice of the Child group tried to meet in sequence prior to the Safeguarding Children’s Partnership and the 0-25 group to review the agenda items and to ensure 
young people have an opportunity to contribute to the agenda – this has not worked as young people, did not engage well in this process, but the groups will meet 
regularly and try to coincide agendas.

The Youth Council still deliver the youth events – coming up will be Make Your Mark and Youth Parliament (2 members now) and Youth Mayor elections in February 
2022

Progress summary (last 8 weeks): (high level and by exception)

Where it has worked -Young People’s commissioning work has progressed well – 5 
young people involved with supported housing for young people commissioning. Around 
is now complete and feedback from young people was positive and from the 
commissioning team. 

The Listening Hub event on e-safety went well due to young people attending from the 
Youth Council and contributing thoroughly. As a result of this the young people are keen
to do more work on the campaign.

Schools conference in response to the OFSTED report on sexual abuse in schools. The 
Young Mayor and MYP met with the Assistant Director for Education and produced a 
short video to open the event. The young people will consider the resources identified 
and look at further action and meet with the AD again later.

The listening hub and the team around the school and various forums linking well 
triangulate with practitioner forums, and parent forums.

The Seldom Heard event Gwen (arts Uni rep), the Youth Council and CVS (Sylvia) are to 
be involved this years event. Event postponed until May 2022. Art focus will support this.

Outlook summary: (next 8 weeks) 

Make Your Mark ballot – subject to schools access COVID and reach issues 
and the Youth Mayor and 2 x MYP elections
Increasing engagement with the SEND Youth forum – specifically targeting 
neuro diverse young people.

Progress on Young People’s commissioning work – next stage to 
commission. A fluid approach is working where young people are identified 
who are in interested in the topic area.

Children’s council – the youth voice structure for primary school age years 5 
and 6 development is being set up.

0-25 Transformation: Highlight Report
Please return to Clare Hopton clare.hopton@salford.gov.uk

P
age 87

mailto:clare.Hopton@salford.gov.uk


Upcoming Milestones/Next steps/Key Decisions Date

Review way new group is working- reviewed – working well action completed
Develop a work plan on how respond to the challenge from young people

To training and recruitment of 25 young commissioners/inspectors

Delivery of young people’s tech committee – The committee are coming to the youth council and attending the Youth Council 
meeting in January to report on progress

NHS governance – coming to the youth council to seek recruits from youth groups.

Championing the role of MOMO Mind of My Own app in social area – delayed information governance issues – January start to be 
implemented

Previous Make Your Mark campaigns – update of campaigns on domestic abuse, Finance and mental health to be shared with 
schools

December 2021
March 2022
March 2022

Risks 

The return of COVID restrictions and the winter weather are affecting groups.

Summary of Risk Summary of Mitigation RAG Rating 
Online meetings with young people 1. Consider COVID secure actual meetings – considered – BLENDED meetings 

are happening now and this is working after purchasing a microphone

Financial spend/requests:

None

Issues for escalation ( through 0-25 Advisory Board and/or Commissioning Committee)

Issue of how young people challenge agencies on the Make Your Mark priorities and creating the opportunities for young people to be involved in the continued review
of the services after they have been commissioned (young inspectors)

P
age 88



| 1

Sub-Group/Programme:        Therapies ERG (SLCN & OT / PT) Lead:  Tori Quinn

Work programme context:
OT/PT

This is a continuation of the therapies test for change work. It builds on the SLCN review and re-specification and is a joint service review of OT / PT with a view to 
developing a new joint, outcome-focussed, service specification across the CCG and LA.

SLCN
Focussed on implementation of the new specification based on the new schools based delivery model N.B. COVID-19 has affected delivery of the full specification.
COVID has caused significant disruption to service delivery, altering the needs and demands on the services. This will affect the full delivery of the SLCN specification.
The provider has developed proposals to ensure provision for children in the current context, but recovery to pre-COVID levels may take some time.

Programme structure and implementation:

OT / PT working group that meets to review current service and develop new service specification feeding into Therapies ERG.

SLCN implementing the new specification, reporting to Therapies ERG with task & finish groups established around particular issues.

Exception reporting through to POG

Progress summary (last 8 weeks): (high level and by exception)

SLCN

• Additional Saturday clinics for initial assessment and some treatment waiting list 
work ongoing and staff working additional hours

• Still experiencing staffing issues due to sickness/absence and a national issue with 
recruitment – SRFT finance have agreed the service can overrecruit – this will be 
dependant on applications received

• Still awaiting contract sign off by SCC

OT / PT
• Working to balance waiting times and prioritising EHCP children. This has impacted 

slightly on the MSK wating times
• MSK clinic New to Follow up ratio reduced to 1:1 to accommodate increasing referral 

numbers. Resulting in less capacity to offer follow up appointments. 

Outlook summary: (next 8 weeks) 
SLCN
• Continue to risk assess service delivery especially in light of increasing 

waiting lists
• Induct new staff & recruit additional staff
• Obtain final sign-off of SCC contribution to joint commission
• Develop city-wide whole school pilot approach to improving vocabulary 

development

OT / PT
• Hydrotherapy to restart following sign off from infection control
• New Band 7 therapist starting Jan and Band 6 physio returning from Mat 

leave. 2 Assistant vacancies to be advertised

0-25 Transformation: Highlight Report
Please return to Clare Hopton clare.hopton@salford.gov.uk

P
age 89

mailto:clare.Hopton@salford.gov.uk


Risks 

1. Critical Staffing issues: SaLT have had experienced staff leave and have struggled to recruit to vacancies, OT / PT need locum cover and do not have the capacity to engage 
in the business case development at the moment

2. Estates: lack of adequate therapy space in some schools and difficulties in travelling across a number of school sites where staff are often not trained to be able to support 
the child. Any new specialist input into schools needs additional resource that needs to be factored in

3. Post 16yr olds: increasing numbers with EHCPs are accessing post 16 learning pathways e.g. 213 young people in City College with EHCPs requiring input, albeit not all with 
therapeutic needs, 75 young people who have moved from Year 11 to college who would require ongoing SALT input. The majority have EHCPs with SALT hours, with many 
of them continuing to stay on at Oakwood and Chatsworth college provision

4. Achievement of stated EHCP hrs:  if EHCP hrs are prioritised in the current situation then preventative work is not being done which will impact in the longer term, 
potentially with increased numbers of EHCPs. Also it is not always possible to deliver what is stated in the Plan due to COVID restrictions, however there is no longer the 
relaxation of the legislation to ‘reasonable endeavours’ as there was  in the initial months of the pandemic

5. Developmental Language Disorder: this is under-identified in Salford, work is ongoing to raise awareness and if this leads to greater identification, then this may mean that 
there needs to be a re-prioritisation of resource based on need, which may mean that some CYP no longer receive a service

6. Gaps identified in new SLCN service specification: lack of provision for PRU’s and independent Jewish schools

7. Impact of managing children from out of area – Shirley Gallagher-Woods is leading  some GM work on this area & SaLT is contributing data 

8. Moving and Handling Risks Assessments in Schools: As the employer schools have duty of care to ensure employees and pupils are safe, including adequate training, 
equipment and policies being place. This is not happening in all mainstream schools and has been raised with management but not yet implemented

9. COVID-19 Impact: Late cancellations due to isolating/bubble closures means slots go unutilised.  Additional cleaning is also required meaning clinic slot times have been 
increased. Both of these issues risk increasing waiting times

Summary of Risk Summary of Mitigation RAG Rating 

Post 16yrs 1. Review the data and scope the provision 16+ 

Estates issues 1. Proposed Changes to education estate shared at LA/CCG Liaison Meeting
2. LA/CCG  planning on health services in special schools – meetings to be resumed

Gaps in SLCN service specification 1. Training to be offered to independent Jewish schools – this has been taken up 
2. 16+ in schools & colleges & PRU’s to be explored as part of first year review of the spec

Staffing Issues 1. SaLT have appointed newly qualified staff and will train them up but this will be more   resource 
intensive in the short term.

2. Team given financial permission to overrecruit
Out of Area issues 1. SaLT are contributing data to the GM review of this area

Financial spend/requests:

Business case to be prepared for additional investment in OT /PT to ensure future service addresses gaps identified within the review.

Issues for escalation ( through 0-25 Advisory Board and/or Commissioning Committee)

Upcoming Milestones/Next steps/Key Decisions Date

Re-specification of OT / PT service & business case to support additional resource ? CCG awaiting data from SRFT

P
age 90



| 1

Sub-Group/Programme:        CAN ERG                                                          Lead: Debbie Blackburn 

Work programme context: Our ambition in Salford is for a well-planned continuum of provision from birth to age 25 that meets the
needs of children and young people with Special Educational Needs or Disability (SEND) and their families at the earliest point.
This will be achieved through:
• Integrated services and pathways across education, health and social care which work in partnership with parents and carers.
• Processes that are developed within a Needs and Outcomes Framework.
It also means a strong commitment to early intervention and prevention so that children’s and young people’s needs are met at the
earliest opportunity and do not escalate and thus require interventions at a much higher level.

Progress summary (last 8 weeks): (high level and by exception)

• Senior Pathway coordinator is reviewing the pathway and has 
identified various pressure points and areas of demand and need. 

• A risk register/list of ongoing issues has been developed. The data 
analysis, capacity/demand review and narrative elements of the 
business case have started, with initial drafts of the report expected 
by Feb/March 2022. The business case paper will also propose a 
restructure to streamline the pathway.

• Interim arrangements for support are also in progress – more admin 
support, support for Early Help etc. A bid for funding for a waiting list 
initiative to address CAMHS and SALT backlogs has been submitted. 

• A benchmarking and mapping workshop was held and an outline of 
workshop support has been developed – commitment from 
organisations is required but capacity is a challenge. 

TCS

• The service is delivering  well and we are starting to see outcomes for 
individual families.  Keyworkers are reaching capacity. 

• The original TCS element is now managed via the Children with 
Disability Team with oversight from the Commissioning Team.

• There is a commitment from CMT and funding via GM To deliver the 
clinical element to Manchester, Salford and Trafford. There  will be  a 
strong delivery plan but it will be totally dependent on  recruitment  
in an area where there already recruitment issues.

Outlook summary: (next 8 weeks) 
• Further work to enable support workshops to be put in 

place
• Initial draft of business case to be developed.
• Result of bid for waiting list initiative.
• Interim arrangements to be confirmed.
TCS

• Continue to develop infrastructure
• Meet with Barnardos re the Keyworkers- they have been 

awarded the contract to recruit Keyworkers to all GM 
Localities.

0-25 Transformation 
Highlight Report

P
age 91



Upcoming Milestones/Next steps/Key Decisions Date

Business case to be drafted
More clarity around way forward for workshops despite capacity and resource issues

Feb/March 2022
Feb 2022

Risks 

CAMHs and SALT waiting list for neuro dev
Neuro pathway complexity of interlinking aspects needs careful consideration.
Staff turnover and wellbeing for neurodev
Numbers of referrals coming into the pathway
Triage arrangements and Liquid Logic attachments issue

There are so many changes on the Horizon staff may become destabilised so lots of work to give reasaurances.

Summary of Risk Summary of Mitigation RAG Rating 

Non delivery of Neuro needs led pathway Need to agree staff in key roles ie triage

Lack of short breaks provision for families Review and plan to mitigate impact on families

Impact of covid on provision to families Negotiations with providers

Financial spend/requests:

Neuro Dev business case recurrent funding to be determined by senior pathway coordinator and commissioners.

Please return to Clare Hopton clare.hopton@salford.gov.uk

P
age 92

mailto:clare.Hopton@salford.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3 Draft Minutes of the Meeting Held on 10 November 2021
	5 Finance Report - Elaine Vermeulen
	6 Paediatric Avoidable Hospital Admissions - Implementation of GM Asthma Standards - Harry Golby
	7 Children's and Maternity Services Commissioning Update - Harry Golby / Tori Quinn
	8 Update on Learning City - Debbie Blackburn
	9 0-25 Highlights Reports from Sub Groups - for information
	09 - 0-25 Highlight Report Dec VOC 2021
	09 - 0-25  Highlight Report Therapies ERG Dec 2021
	09 - 0-25 Highlight report - CAN ERG Dec 2021


